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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of this company
(“Company”) is destined to continue to bring this Company forward
by improving performance on existing business and setting new
directions by expanding into businesses with high growth potential.

To maintain our competitiveness and long-term growth prospect in the
outsourced business process management in Macau, we streamlined
some of our processes by realigning our resources into key strategic
business areas. This results in 19% drop in revenue in this business
as compared to last fiscal year. Despite this short-term impact,
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the ‘Group’) remain
confident in the long-term prospects of this business segment as
Macau will play a key role as the entertainment hub for the Greater
Bay Area.

During the year, we have also made progress in rebuilding our
information technology services business with a focus on fintech
by leveraging our existing process management expertise and
relationship. We have established a number of key partnerships
with leading financial and fintech companies in the region as well
as acquired few licensed subsidiaries which are related to the
development of our fintech business. The Group believes that our
re-engagement into the information technology business will not only
complement our existing businesses but also serve as a business
diversification channel and an alternative long-term revenue driver.

Looking ahead, the Board plans to achieve sustainable growth in the
next few years by establishing a bigger presence in the Greater Bay
Area with our outsourced business process management and fintech
platform. The Board also seeks to gradually open up different revenue
by capturing other opportunities in our areas of expertise in other
Asian countries exhibiting high-growth.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

KWAN Chun Wai Roy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Performance of the Group

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$87.8 million for the
financial year ended 31 March 2019 (“FY2019” or the “Year”), versus
approximately HK$112.4 million in the financial year ended 31 March
2018 (“FY2018”), a decrease of approximately HK$24.6 million. During
the Year, the Group was principally engaged in provision of outsourced
business process management for electronic gaming machines in
Macau (the “Outsourced Business Process Management”), information
technology services business and money lending business. During
the Year, no revenue had been generated from packaging products
business since the operation of packaging products business was
disposed in FY2018. Our revived information technology services
business and the resulting fintech-related commercial factoring and
money lending business have started generating revenue for the
Group.

Outsourced Business Process Management

The Outsourced Business Process Management business contributed
over 98.7% of the Group’s revenue during the Year, and revenue
generated from the Outsourced Business Process Management
decreased by approximately 19.0% from approximately HK$107.0
million in FY2018 to approximately HK$86.7 million in FY2019. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the cessation of one of the
operation outlets located at the Landmark Macau during the year
ended 31 March 2018 and the intense competition in the Macau
gaming market faced by the Group. Despite the cost control
measures which have been implemented by the Group in Macau
operations, the loss from such segment increased. The loss from
this captioned segment during the Year was approximately HK$19.5
million compared with loss of approximately HK$11.6 million during
FY2018 which was mainly due to the decrease in gross revenue and
increase in operating costs.

On one hand, the Group strives to continuously concentrate on its
Outsourced Business Process Management business and on the
other hand, the Group will take cautious control of its operating costs
so as to maintain its competitiveness in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ﬁqﬂEFEHTnH21 *ﬁ

Packaging Products Business

During the Year, no revenue had been generated from packaging
products business (FY2018: HK$5.4 million and loss of approximately
HK$0.9 million) since the operation of packaging products business
and the Vietnam’s operation of information technology services
business were disposed of.

Information Technology Services Business

The Group entered into several agreements for the provision of
racing system in Vietnam in the last quarter of 2015. The information
technology services business started generating revenue to the Group
in FY2017. However, due to the changes in regulatory environment in
Vietnam which make the operating environment for the information
technology services business more challenging, the Group decided
to terminate the agreements with the customers with effect from
28 June 2017. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 28 June 2017 for details.

Acting on the plan stated in the Company’s annual report for the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Group has successfully applied blockchain
and fintech to complement and diversify our business operations.
The Group has formed strategic partnerships with leading financial
and fintech companies in the region and realigned our resources
in rebuilding our information technology services business. During
the year, the Group has developed blockchain and fintech-related
factoring and risk management platform not only for our own but also
for other customers.

During the Year, revenue generated from information technology
services business was approximately HK$58,000 with a loss
approximately HK$0.3 million (FY2018: nil, loss of approximately
HK$2.8 million).

Money Lending Business

To prepare for possible changes in regulatory requirement related to
our fintech business development, we have acquired few licensed
subsidiaries both in Hong Kong and in China. During the Year, the
Group leveraged our newly developed fintech and risk management
platform to diversify our business operations into commercial factoring
and money lending, thereby enhancing the profitability of the Group’s
business as a whole which were aligned with the strategies and future
development of the Group. During the Year, revenue generated from
money lending business was approximately HK$1.1 million with profit
of approximately HK$0.2 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment in Electrical Energy Storage System
Solutions Business

The Group has been actively looking for investment opportunities to
continue to expand and upgrade its business. The Group has made an
investment in Primus Power Corporation (“Primus”), a USA company
principally engaged in the provision of electrical energy storage system
solutions. The Company is constantly reviewing the performance of
Primus and reviewing its strategy on its investment in Primus.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the valuation technique has been
changed from market approach adopted in 2018 to asset approach,
as no suitable data from comparable with similar status of Primus
and lack of reliable long-term financing forecast from Primus can
be adopted in the valuation process. As such, for the year ended
31 March 2019, fair value changes of equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income of approximately HK$54.2
million was recognized on the investment in Primus with reference to
fair value appraised by an independent professional valuer.

Details of the fair value measurement for the Group’s investment in
Primus are set out in note 6 in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements in this report. Shareholders and potential investors of the
Company should note that the fair value of such equity investments
may vary depending on the valuation techniques used by different
valuers, although the Company and its independent valuer have
endeavored to ensure that the valuation techniques adopted are in
accordance with standard valuation practices and accurately reflect
the fair value of such equity investments.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During FY2019, the Outsourced Business Process Management
business continued to be the Group’s core business which
contributed approximately 98.7% (FY2018: approximately 95.2%) of
the Group’s total revenue. The revenue derived from this business
segment was approximately HK$86.7 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 19.0% (FY 2018: approximately HK$107.0 million).
For the packaging products business, there was no revenue generated
during FY2019 (FY2018: HK$5.4 million) due to the reason stated
above and the fact that it was disposed of on 31 August 2017. During
FY2019, the revenue derived from the information technology services
business segment was approximately HK$58,000 (FY2018: nil) due
to the reason stated above. The revenue derived from the money
lending business segment was approximately HK$1.1 million which
was new business segment for the Group. At the close of the FY2019,
the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$87.8 million
(FY2018: approximately HK$112.4 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 21.9%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmE DN

The Group reported a net loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$38.9 million for FY2019 (FY2018: approximately
HK$131.6 million). The decrease in net loss was mainly caused by the
following factors:

i) Decrease in the operating, administrative and other expenses
from approximately HK$70.0 million in FY2018 to approximately
HK$56.3 million in FY2019. The major reason lies in the
decrease in staff costs and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment. The Group’s staff costs in FY2019 decreased by
approximately 45.5% from approximately HK$29.8 million in
FY2018 to approximately HK$16.2 million in FY2019.

ii) Decrease in the accounting loss arising from impairment of
various assets from approximately HK$102.5 million in FY2018
to approximately HK$4.1 million in FY2019. For FY2019, fair
value changes of equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income of approximately HK$54.2 million
was recognized on the investment in Primus with reference
to fair value appraised by an independent professional valuer.
Details of fair value measurements are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$24.2 million. As at the same date, the Group had
a liability component of the unsecured and unguaranteed interest-
free loan of approximately HK$3.4 million, which was borrowed
from a former substantial shareholder of the Company namely, Mr.
Yong Khong Yoong Mark (“Mr. Yong”), for a principal amount of
HK$20.0 million (the “Loan”). On 11 September 2017, Mr. Yong and
the Company had entered into a supplemental loan agreement,
pursuant to which the repayment date of the Loan had been
extended to 11 August 2019. During the Year, the Group entered into
a loan agreement with an independent third party for an unsecured
and unguaranteed loan amount to approximately HK$15.0 million
with principal amount of HK$15.0 million, interest rate at 12% per
annum. Pursuant to this loan agreement, the repayment date will be
5 December 2019.

During the Year, the Group entered into a director loan facility agreement
with a Director, namely Mr. Kwan Chun Wai Roy (“Mr. Kwan”) for an
unsecured and unguaranteed interest-free loan facility of HK$3.0 million
in total. As at 25 July 2018, HK$1.0 milion had been drawn down by the
Company (the “Director’s Loan”) and will mature and become repayable
on 24 July 2020. The Company had early repaid the entire amount of the
Director’s Loan to Mr. Kwan during the Year. As at 31 March 2019, the
outstanding balance which Mr. Kwan has paid on behalf of the Group
for expenses amounted to approximately HK$159,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2018, the balance of director’s loans amounted
to approximately HK$4.9 million, representing unsecured and
unguaranteed interest-free loans with principal amount of HK$2.0
million, HK$3.0 million and HK$250,000, respectively from a former
Director, namely Mr. Tan Teng Hong (“Mr. Tan”), which will mature
and become repayable on 20 May 2019, 22 July 2019 and 28 March
2020, respectively. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 4 July 2018, Mr. Tan has tendered his resignation as the
Director. These director’s loans were reclassified as other loans on
4 July 2018. During the Year, HK$2.3 million and HK$1.5 million had
been drawn down by the Company which will mature and become
repayable on 28 March 2020 and 4 November 2019, respectively,
and the Company had early repaid the entire amount of the other
loans to Mr. Tan during the Year.

During the FY2018, the Group entered into a shareholder loan
agreement with a former substantial shareholder of the Company,
namely, Mr. Tsang Ho Kwan (“Mr. Tsang”) for an unsecured and
unguaranteed interest-free loan facility of HK$5.0 million in total. As
at 31 March 2018, HK$2.6 million had been drawn down by the
Company and will mature and become repayable on 28 September
2019 (the “Shareholder’s Loan”). On 8 November 2017, the Group
had entered into a supplemental loan agreement with Mr. Tsang for
a loan facility amount of HK$5.0 million, which would be unsecured
and unguaranteed interest-free. During the Year, the Group had early
repaid the entire amount of other loan to Mr. Tsang. Apart from
the above, the Group did not have any other borrowings and had
not engaged in any financial instruments for hedging or speculative
activities.

The gearing ratio of loans against the total equity as at 31 March
2019 was 44.8%. As the majority of bank deposits and cash on
hand were denominated in Hong Kong dollar, followed by Macau
Pataca, Renminbi and US dollar, the Group’s exchange risk exposure
depended on the movement of the exchange rates of the aforesaid
currencies.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group maintains a conservative approach on foreign exchange
exposure management and ensures that its exposure to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates is minimized. The Group did not engage
in any derivatives agreement and did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its foreign exchange exposures during the year
ended 31 March 2019. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Save as the placing of new shares mentioned under the heading of
“ISSUE OF SHARES” in this Annual Report, there was no significant
change in the Group’s capital structure for the year ended 31 March
2019.

ISSUE OF SHARES

Placing of 292,610,000 ordinary Shares under general mandate of the
Company (the “Placement”).

On 10 August 2018 and 22 August 2018, the Company and C.P.
Securities International Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into
a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) and supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) respectively, pursuant to
which the Company has appointed the Placing Agent to procure, on
a best efforts basis, not less than six placees who were professional,
institutional or other private investors to subscribe for up to
292,610,000 ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.24
per share (the “Placing Shares”), representing (i) approximately 14.11%
of the existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the Supplemental Agreement; and (ii) approximately 12.37% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the Placing Shares. The closing price of the Shares as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 10 August 2018, being the date of the
Placing Agreement, was HK$0.250 per Share. The Company received
net proceeds from the Placement, after deducting placing commission
and other fees and expenses, of approximately HK$68.8 million (“Net
Proceeds”). The Net Proceeds from the Placement are to be utilized
for business development, to repay Director’s loan, other loans and
other payables and as the general working capital of the Group.
Details of the Placement were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 10 August 2018, 22 August 2018 and 4 September
2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 March 2019, the net proceeds of the placement had been

utilized as follows:

Net proceeds
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

On 27 December 2018, an independent third party (the “Vendor”) and
the Company entered into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to acquire and the Vendor has
agreed to sell the entire issued share capital in Powerful Finance
Limited (Bt DB AR A7) (the “Acquisition”), a licensed money
lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and its principal activity is money lending and it was
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability (the “Target Company).
The total consideration was HK$400,000, which was settled in cash
by the Company. Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Target
Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
its financial results were consolidated into the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. Details of the Acquisition were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Significant investments held and their performance

The Group has made an investment in Primus Power Corporation
(“Primus”), a company incorporated in the USA principally engaged
in the provision of electrical energy storage system solutions. The
Company is constantly reviewing the performance of Primus and
reviewing its strategy on its investment in Primus.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the valuation technique has been
changed from market approach adopted in 2018 to asset approach,
as no suitable data from comparable with similar status of Primus
and lack of reliable long-term financing forecast from Primus can
be adopted in the valuation process. As such, for the year ended
31 March 2019, fair value changes of equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income of approximately HK$54.2
million was recognized on the investment in Primus with reference to
fair value appraised by an independent professional valuer.

Details of the fair value measurement for the Group’s investment in
Primus are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
in this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS IN THE BUSINESS
OF THE GROUP

As stated in the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 March 2018, the Group has encountered the possibilities of
applying blockchain technologies to complement or diversify its
business operations. The Group wishes to form strategic partnership
with and invest tactically into leading fintech companies, and to
realign its resources in rebuilding its information technology services
business.

As per above stated, the Group has also made progress in rebuilding
our information technology services business with a focus on
fintech by leveraging our existing process management expertise
and relationship. We have established a number of key partnerships
with leading financial and fintech companies in the region as well
as acquired few licensed subsidiaries which are related to the
development of our fintech business. The Group believes that our
re-engagement into the information technology business will not only
complement our existing businesses but also serve as a business
diversification channel and an alternative long-term revenue driver.

The Group will continue to build traction for our blockchain and fintech
platform by establishing more partnership with key industry players
and by exploring new revenue channels in finance-related sectors.
The Greater Bay Area Initiatives have also created an opportunity for
Macau and Hong Kong to integrate their roles, as an entertainment
hub and an international financial center respectively, into the area.
Its presence in Macau has already put the Group in a privileged
position to capture the opportunities brought by the Greater Bay
Area Initiatives. Also by building on top of our licensed subsidiaries
and our success in executing the first non-recourse cross-border
purchase of China onshore receivables (for details of this transaction,
please refer to our announcement dated 12 November 2018), our
revived information technology services platform will enable the Group
to diversify its business operations into high-growth fintech-related
businesses in the Greater Bay Area.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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On 9 November 2018, ezBlock Commercial Factoring (Shenzhen)
Limited (formerly known as Shengye Minghua Commercial Factoring
(Shengzhen) Limited”) (BB ERECOFRI)BER AR - A AR E
BEFEREBOFRIDER AR (“ezBlock Commercial”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a business
development service agreement (the “Service Agreement”) with
Shenzhen Qianhai Linklogis Financial Services Company Limited*
(RIS SRS RMRFEERAT) (“Linklogis’). In addition, on
9 November 2018, ezBlock Commercial entered into a supplemental
agreement to the Service Agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) with
Shenzhen Qianhai Weqi Blockchain Technology Limited* (311 Al /8#
TERER AR AT) (“SQ Weai”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Linklogis. Pursuant to the Service Agreement and the Supplemental
Agreement (collectively, the “Agreements”), the Group will provide
business development services for WeQChain (fi{>#F &), a supply
chain financing platform built by Linklogis based on blockchain
technology. The Group agreed to source businesses with the need
of supply chain financing services and procure them and their
suppliers to use WeQChain for financing the accounts receivables
held by the suppliers. SQ Weqi agreed to pay the Group a service
fee every quarter during the term of the Agreements for the business
development services provided by the Group. The Agreements had
a term of two years from the date of the Agreements, which may be
terminated by 30 days’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

Given that the Group’s experience in business process management
will be beneficial for Linklogis to expand its market share and
maintain its leading position in the industry, Linklogis and SQ Weqi
entered into the Agreements with the Group. Through entering into
the Agreements, the Group wishes to leverage on the strength,
resources and expertise of Linklogis to develop its knowledge and
experience in blockchain and fintech, diversify its business operations
and strengthen its information technology services business, thereby
enhancing the profitability of the Group’s business as a whole.

Details of the Agreements were set out
announcement dated 9 November 2018.

in the Company’s

On 12 November 2018, Success Dragon Operations Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into an
agreement to purchase four trade receivables with a total size of
RMB3.97 million (the “Purchase”) from an independent commercial
factoring company in China and the debtor of these trade receivables
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of a large Chinese state-owned
enterprise in the construction sector. The trade receivables were
scheduled to be repaid by the end of March 2019. Upon repayment,
these receivables will generate revenue in the form of interest. As
at 31 March 2019, the above-mentioned trade receivables were all
received by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As stated in the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 March 2018, the Group has been exploring the application of
blockchain technology to complement and diversify its business
operations. The Group has been developing and implementing a
blockchain application to identify and track assets with a future
payment obligation.

As a step to implement the blockchain technology, the Board decided
to enter into the Purchase. The Board believed that such assets,
which were financial in nature and contained the required repayment
obligations, are suitable for testing the Group’s blockchain technology.
Furthermore, the Board also believed that these assets would help the
Group to gain knowledge of China onshore trade receivable financing
as a potential source of business diversification.

Details of the Purchase were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 12 November 2018.

On 27 December 2018, an independent third party (the “Vendor”)
and the Company entered into the sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to acquire and the
Vendor has agreed to sell the entire issued share capital in Powerful
Finance Limited (B QB #4E RAA]) (the “Acquisition”), a licensed
money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and its principal activity is money lending
and it was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability (the “Target
Company”). The total consideration was HK$400,000, which was
settled in cash by the Company. Upon completion of the Acquisition,
the Target Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and its financial results were consolidated into the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. Details of the Acquisition were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 December 2018.

The Acquisition and the Purchase would help the Group to leverage
the Target Company’s experience in money lending and bring
synergies to the Group’s information technology services business
with a focus on fintech, exploring the application of blockchain
technology to complement and diversify its business operations,
thereby enhancing the profitability of the Group’s business as a whole
which were aligned with the strategies and future development of the
Group.

As at the date of this report, the Group had no plans for material
investments or acquisition of capital assets. However, the Group will
continue to identify new opportunities for business development.
In the event that any definitive agreement is entered into in relation
to any material investments or acquisition of capital assets, further
announcement(s) will be made if and when required or as appropriate
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

* The English transliteration of the Chinese name(s) in this report, which is

indicated with “*’, is included for information purpose only, and should not
be regarded as the official English name(s) of the relevant entity(ies)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, no asset was pledged by the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$1.5 million (FY2018: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group employed 43 permanent employees as at 31 March 2019,
with 7 employees in Hong Kong and 36 employees in Macau.

The Group continues to review the remuneration packages of
employees with reference to the level and composition of pay,
general market condition and individual performance. Staff benefits
offered by the Group to its employees include contribution to
defined contribution retirement scheme, discretionary bonus, share
option scheme, medical allowance and hospitalization scheme and
housing allowance. The Group supports a fair, transparent and high
performance culture through its human resources department, by
developing and improving its programs particularly on recruitment,
performance management, training and development and employee
relations.

LITIGATION

The Group has a number of pending litigation and in the opinion of
the legal counsel, it is premature to predict the outcomes. Details
of litigation are disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group during FY2019.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its business partners, suppliers and customers to
meet its immediate and long-term goals. Accordingly, the Group’s
senior management have kept good communication, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business update with the stakeholders
when appropriate. The Group has organized and encouraged staff
to participate in local fund raising activities for the underprivileged in
society in Hong Kong. During FY2019, there were no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners,
suppliers and/or customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. Details of the
environmental policies and performance are set out in Environment,
Social and Governance Report of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Strategic Enterprise Risks

It includes stagnant or negative growth of the Group’s current
businesses and delayed implementation of new business agreements
arising from economic, governmental and political instability. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures by
carrying out feasibility assessment, forecast and projection to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Operational Risks

The key operational risks of the Group are as follows:

i) Breakdown of the racing system or electronic gaming machines
ii) Misappropriation of assets and fraudulent act by game players
iii) High staff turnover rates particularly on key operational staff
iv) Crisis events leading to disruption of business

Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at segmental and departmental levels. Key functions in
the Group are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits
of authority and reporting framework. Management of the Group
will identify and assess key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

Financial Risks

Financial risks include liquidity risk, foreign exchange rate risk and
credit risk. In managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flows
and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to
ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the
effects of fluctuation in cash flows.

For foreign exchange rate risk, the Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

Compliance Risk

Compliance risk is the risk that the Group will be reprimanded
by authorities for non-compliance. The management of the Group
works with external professional parties to monitor and ensure that
the business procedures and documentation are fully complied with
applicable local laws and regulations.

“ERR
AEBEzETE BT
i) GEAFRAEFEEHERBKIE
i) MERPAEERELEKFTR
i) BIWNREIBEEZABIRLES

V) BAEBREHERERXTE
EELCERRZETEALHZRDHBREMB

BEERE AEEZIBREIAGIRELE
R R KERER ﬁﬂoﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁmﬂ

HAEFHEELE CDAE R EUE E B i TR
HE R o
+ m = B
SRERBRERSDE SRR - INERERR R &G

ERR -TEERDELRARE AERERES
ME YHBARRZRELRVEFEBRKY - U
MRERAEEZERHES R ARRERER
B2 E -

FJW\\EEWHA K £ [ Y5 7 ) B 22 O E R
Iﬂbxﬁt%lﬁimﬂiﬁﬁl\[ﬂﬁm .

REEERBREBERE AEEEEEEZK—
YEGEEEEFERE FEMRREMEE
BF BERDERBURETSHABKAIER -
BRE R

e REk  HASERTARMEGHEERE
BzRAR AEBEREERIIEEZALAER

ENEREBRELXES 2N A EMHERZE
BEER -

18 Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/19



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

KWAN Chun Wai Roy, aged 42, has been appointed as the
Chairman of the Company, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 3 July 2018.
Mr. Kwan is also appointed as an authorised representative of the
Company under the Listing Rules. He is also the director of ezBlock
Financial Technology Company Limited, Success Dragon Operations
Limited, ezBlock International Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Success Dragon Energy Limited), Extra Success Holdings Limited,
Real Champ International Holdings Limited and Extra Nice Limited,
all of which are direct wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Kwan is the legal person of &8 & @l k7% ORI R A 7A and
ezBlock Commercial Factoring (Shenzhen) Limited 5 1% 5 2£ (R 12 (F
JINAMR AT (formerly known as BEMEFERBRIDARA
7)) and the director of ezBlock Finance (HK) Limited and ezBlock
Finance (China) Limited, all of which are indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Science
in Computer Science and Economics awarded by University of
Michigan, Ann Arbor. He also holds Master of Science in Engineering
Economic Systems and Operations Research awarded by Stanford
University. Mr. Kwan has extensive experiences in banking, financial
and technology sectors and strategic management consultancy
experiences in various industries such as pharmaceutical,consumer
goods and financial services. Mr. Kwan had held senior positions in
various multinational organisations.

DING Lei, aged 28, has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company since 1 April 2018. Mr. Ding obtained a Master’s
degree in Finance from The University of Texas at Dallas in December
2015 and a Bachelor’s degree in English Language and Literature
from Luoyang Institute of Technology* in July 2012. Mr. Ding was
an investment manager in the fixed income department in Sichuan
Trust Co., Ltd.* from January 2016 to September 2017. He is currently
a director of Luanchuan Province Luanling Gold Mines Co. Ltd.*
and Chifeng Yongfeng Mining Co., Ltd.*. He is also as a supervisor
of Shenzhen Munsun Asset Management Company Limited*. Save
that Mr. Ding is the nephew of Mr. Liu Shiwei (who is a substantial
shareholder of the Company), Mr. Ding is not related to any Directors,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange) of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHI Dong Eun, aged 28, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 14 September 2017. He
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Mathematics with Honors from the
University of Chicago in 2012. He conducted thorough and recognized
research in finance, entrepreneurship, and executive management at
the Booth School of Business, and participated in several notable
studies in conjunction with Stanford’s Graduate School of Business
and leading private firms in the United States. He is currently a
Principal at InsideOut Due Diligence, specializing in research.

DENG Yougao, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 1 April 2018. He obtained a
Master degree in Business Economics from I 75 Bf & 27 (Institute
of Finance and Economics of Jiangxi, now known as Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics) in 1994 and a Bachelor degree
in Shipbuilding Engineering from M & Ml T2 (Harbin
Shipbuilding Engineering Institute, now known as Harbin Engineering
University) in 1988. Mr. Deng is a director of J&IIE B FHE MK A
[R27] (Shenzhen Henggu Anti-corrosion Nano Technology Co., Ltd.),
the chairman of the board and the general manager of J&II T MEE X
RILEEEHMR AT (Shenzhen City Weishi Chengzhang Investment
Management Co., Ltd.) and a supervisor of each of /&M /HEZ Rl
MEFR M EMR AR (Shanghai Xinyi Darongxun Electronic Shares
Co., Ltd., which had been listed on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations System till 8 July 2018, stock code: 836587) and &
YT & 0 BB BR A R) (Shenzhen Qianhai Shi Xin Technology
Co., Ltd.). Mr. Deng is also an independent non-executive director of
Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited (stock
code: 697), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Deng
has numerous experiences in different roles in various companies in
different industries.

WONG Chi Yan, aged 37, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 14 May
2018. She obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Accounting awarded by Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
of Laws in International Corporate and Financial Law awarded by
The University of Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom. She is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. Ms. Wong has extensive experiences in auditing,
accounting and financing as well as merger and acquisition.
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Ms. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of each
of Munsun Capital Group Limited (stock code: 1194), Huiyin Holdings
Group Limited (formerly known as Share Economy Group Limited)
(stock code: 1178) and Asia Television Holdings Limited (stock code:
707), companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. and
the company secretary and authorised representative of each of Flyke
International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1998) and China Properties
Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 736), companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Wong was the company secretary of Goldway Education Group
Limited (stock code: 8160) from October 2018 to May 2019, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was an
executive director and authorised representative of Elegance Optical
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 907) from February 2017
to October 2018 and the company secretary from March 2017 to
September 2017, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. She was also an executive director of Century Group
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as CHerish Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 2113) from October 2017 to June 2018, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She was
an independent non-executive director of Ding He Mining Holdings
Limited (stock code: 705) from January 2018 to July 2018, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She was an executive
director and authorised representative of Aurum Pacific (China) Group
Limited (stock code: 8148) from May 2015 to October 2017. She
was also an executive director, company secretary and authorised
representative of PPS International (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
8201) from June 2015 to July 2016, companies listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange. She was also the executive director of China
Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code: 873) from July 2016
to August 2016, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. She was also an independent non-executive director of
Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (stock code: 3823) from
March 2017 to February 2019, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

AU Kin Wah, aged 55, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 30 September 2018. He holds a Professional
Diploma in Accountancy awarded by the Hong Kong Polytechnic. He
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Au has extensive experiences in banking,
commodity, auditing and accounting sectors. Mr. Au had held senior
positions in various European and Singaporean banks. Prior to joining
the banks, Mr. Au worked in the audit division of an international
accounting firm in Hong Kong.

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for information only, and
should not be regarded as the official English translation of such name. Please
refer to the Chinese version of this Annual Report for the Chinese name
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
(the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of the Group are provision of outsourced business
process management for electronic gaming machines in Macau,
information technology services business and provision of money
lending business.

RESULTS, DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The results of the Group for the financial year under review are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 68 to 69 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

The Company currently does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. In considering any dividend, the Board shall consider
the actual and expected financial performance of the Group, retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of the
members of the Group, the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio,
return on equity and the relevant financial covenants, any restrictions
on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders, the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans, general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group, and any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.
The Board has the absolute discretion to recommend any dividends.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 152. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company for the financial year under
review are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
and under the heading of “CAPITAL STRUCTURE” in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
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ISSUE OF SHARES

Details of the Company’s issue of shares during the Year are set
out under the heading “ISSUE OF SHARES” in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this Annual Report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the financial
year under review are set out in consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 72.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of
the movement in share options of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statement and in the
section headed “Share Options” in the Directors’ Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, no Company’s reserves are available for
distribution (2018: approximately HK$23,117,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers to the total turnover was approximately
7.2%. The percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer to the total turnover was approximately 2.2%.
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During the Year, the percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers to the total purchases was
approximately 99.9%.

The percentage of purchase attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier to the total purchases was approximately 54.4%.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in any of the major customers or suppliers above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were as follows:

Executive Directors:
KWAN Chun Wai Roy

(Chairman and
chief executive officer)

(appointed as Chairman and
chief executive officer
on 3 July 2018)

DING Lei (appointed on 1 April 2018)

TAN Teng Hong (resigned on 3 July 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
CHI Dong Eun

DENG Yougao (appointed on 1 April 2018)

WONG Chi Yan (appointed on 14 May 2018)

AU Kin Wah (appointed on 30 September 2018)

CHUNG Yuk Lun (resigned on 30 September 2018)

YONG Peng Tak (resigned on 30 September 2018)

In accordance with section 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs
KWAN Chun Wai Roy and DING Lei shall retire as Director, and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the "AGM”).

In accordance with sections 86(2) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Byelaws, any person appointed by the Directors to fill a casual
vacancy or as additional Director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting but shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation at such meeting.
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Accordingly, Mr. AU Kin Wah, who was appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company, shall retire and being eligible, offer himself
for re-election at the AGM.

Details of re-election of the Directors at the AGM will be set out in
the circular to the shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
report, there was or is permitted indemnity provision (within the
meaning in Section 469 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong)) in the Bye-laws of the Company being
in force. The Company has maintained Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
certain legal actions brought against its Directors and officers arising
out of corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS” in
this Director’s report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company, which
were not contract of service with any Director or any person engaged
in full time employment of the Company, were entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement and contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Directors are not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors, the management of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group and
any other conflict of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance (whether in relation to provision of
services to the Group or not) between the Company or its subsidiaries
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2019, or the date of cessation as a Director or
chief executive of the Company, if earlier, the interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive of the Company and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”))
which were required (a) to be entered in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
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Name Capacity Number of Shares Shareholding
" A 514 RHEE BRE
(%)

(Note)

(B3

Mr. YONG Peng Tak Beneficial owner 800,000 0.03

(resigned on 30 September 2018)
B ELRE BEmEAA
(RZZE-N\FAA=THEE)

Note:

The percentage of shareholding is calculated based on the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019.
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Long positions in share options of the Company AABEREZHE
Number of
Name Date of grant underlying Shares Shareholding
s REBH HERGEHE FRE
(%)
(Note)
(KT 3F)
Mr. YONG Peng Tak 3 July 2014 800,000 0.03
(resigned on 30 September 2018)
B ELE —ZT-mWFE+HA=R
(RZZE-N\FNAA=THEE)
Mr. TAN Teng Hong 27 September 2017 20,700,000 0.87
(resigned on 3 July 2018)
PR IUR S —E—+HFhA=Z++R
(RZZE-N\F+H=B#&)
Note: P 3%

The percentage of shareholding is calculated based on the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, or the date of
cessation as a Director or chief executive of the Company, if earlier,
none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required (a) to be entered in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 March 2019, the persons/companies, other than a Director R-ZT—AF=ZA=+—8 T AL 28(KAQ
or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short ®ZEBEHZSITHABRIN EEWARRIRE
positions in the shares and underlying shares in the Company as # 5K I EIEHIFE336IKBFE 2 &ML
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant AN & I A0 K 48 B A 15 #E 35 sOA &

to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name Capacity Number of Shares Shareholding
i v} BHHE BRE
(%)
(Note 1)
(P &E1)
LIU Shiwei Beneficial owner 612,373,895 (L) 25.88
L= ExnEAA 503,669,620 (S) 21.29
Note 2
Mi&E2
Shanghao Limited Beneficial owner 508,669,620 (L) 21.29
ExnEAA Note 3
Bt 553
TSANG Ho Kwan Interest of controlled corporation 508,669,620 (L) 21.29
=RCIR: EEHEE Note 3
Bt 553
(L) Long positions S

%
i

(S) Short positions
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Notes:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated based on the number of
issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019.

2. As at 31 March 2019, LIU Shiwei held 503,669,620 put option shares,
so LIU Shiwei was taken to have a short position of 503,669,620 shares
in the Company.

3. As at 31 March 2019, Shanghao Limited held 503,669,620 call option
shares. TSANG Ho Kwan is the sole beneficial shareholder of Shanghao
Limited. Therefore, TSANG Ho Kwan is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which Shanghao Limited was interested by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, according to the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements
and in the section headed “Share options” in this Directors’ Report,
at no time during the Year were there rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor (natural
or adopted), or were such rights exercised by them; nor was the
Company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants include Directors, full-time employees, senior executives
and consultants of the Company.

The current Scheme became effective on 28 September 2012 and
was amended on 8 August 2014, which unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the first effective
date.

BREEKZERARAR
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—RZEBTEROHEERE -

2. R-ZET—-AEF=ZA=+—-—H0 MtEHEE
503,669,620 R A HEE D - I LB AR AR
N A #E B 503,669,6200% A% 19 KK B ©

3. RZZT—hF=A=+—H" Shanghao Limited
FF H503,669,620fk R EEF R MH - BRI EHAR
Shanghao Limited#) M —E = AR R o Bt - RIEZE
FREERG] - GRIEE R AR Shanghao Limited
HEEZORDPHARESZ
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The maximum number of shares falling to be issued in respect of the
unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under
the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares as at the date of approval of the Scheme unless such
limit is refreshed by resolutions of the shareholders of the Company
subsequently. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A
non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option. There is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price will be determined at the absolute discretion of
the Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the higher of the
closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the offer date and the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date and the nominal
value of the share on the offer date.

On 14 September 2017, the refreshment of scheme mandate limit
under the Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) at the annual general meeting by way of an
ordinary resolution. The Company is thus entitled to issue a maximum
of 207,367,654 Shares upon exercise of the share options to be
granted under the refreshed scheme mandate limit, representing 10%
of the issued Shares as at the date of the annual general meeting.

On 10 August 2018 (after trading hours), the Company has granted
82,800,000 Share options (the “Options”) to eligible participants of
the Group (the “Grantees”). Subject to acceptance of the Grantees,
20,700,000 Options were granted to each of the Grantees. Among
the aggregate of 82,800,000 Options granted, Options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 41,400,000 Shares were granted to the Directors,
20,700,000 Options to Mr. KWAN Chun Wai Roy, an executive
Director, Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company, and
20,700,000 Options to Mr. DING Lei, an executive Director. Save as
disclosed above, none of the Grantees is a Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates. Subsequently, the Company, as approved by the Board
and with the consent of the Grantees, has cancelled the grant of
the Options with effect from 24 August 2018. None of Grantees
has accepted the Options. Details of the grant and cancellation of
the Options were set out in the Company’s announcements dated
13 August 2018 and 24 August 2018.

Save as mentioned above, no share options were granted by the
Company during the Year.

BEREBEFEIRHZATERBBREETERA
FTEHAZBRORSHREEENTEERLEERZ
10% %17 - BRIEAR R BIRRIR B R ARSI
REM+ZEARER RIEAEETERER
M- 2AERB2EEHTZERNESHRELE
BEARAREARREZEETRNOZ1% - E—F
RHBBURBELBEREALBRRNBRAE L
& - REMERER - 2R AAZM1.008 T2
TARERFRE - BB &R TR A AT E
RIARBZ &ZEHR -
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RN EBHOENEBIAESRRER LAHER
BTz W E - RN ERELN R AT R (E S
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RZZE—tFALA+HE KRR ZBRE(KED
RAREzRERBFRELEUEBAZRS A
EBFEEIE T 28I EREE - Bt - AARA]
RBBEEEFAEEERERL BREETE
RF 8% 17 5 %207,367,654(% & 10 - HHE KNI E A F
AERITHPDEITRGZ10% °

RZZFE-NFNATHRGKEEEZ)ARRMAE
B 2A&ER2EE(FEEALEHS2800,0001%
fEhx e ([RERAED - & —H AR A 20,700,000
MERE HASARABERNEHIOER - R©
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No share options were exercised, 19,010,000 share options were
lapsed and 82,800,000 share options were cancelled during the Year.

Directors’ Report

NEEANEBEREETE
2 5 7 }2.82,800,00017 B A #E 2 5F 84 ©

EEEHS

19,010,00017 B M &

Details of the movement of the share options of the Company under 32| TARFEEARATBRE Y @HEBEHIWOT
the Scheme for the Year are set out below:
Share
options
Date of grant Expiry date Exercise  Share options held as at
of share of share price held as at 31 March
Grantees options options (HK$) 31 March 2018 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2019
RZB-NF RZB-NF
REBRE BRE I8 =A=+-AH =BA=t-H
AR A B 38R (Bm) HEZERE EREH 2% BAX S HEzERE
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. TAN Teng Hong 27.09.2017 26.09.2022 0.2550 20,700,000 - - - - 20,700,000
(resigned on
3 July 2018)
RHRERLE
(%ZE—AEtHEB
)
Mr. KWAN Chun Wai Roy ~ 10.08.2018 10.08.2023 0.2570 - 20,700,000 - - (20,700,000 -
BiRELE
Mr. DING Lei 10.08.2018 10.08.2023 0.2570 - 20,700,000 - - (20,700,000 -
T&%%E
Sub-total:
gt 20,700,000 41,400,000 - - (41,400,000) 20,700,000
Independent Non-executive Director
BYFHTES
Mr. YONG Peng Tak 10.01.2014 09.01.2019 0.4700 200,000 - - (200,000) - -
(resigned on 03.07.2014 02.07.2019 0.4150 800,000 - - - - 800,000
30 September 2018)
BTERE
(R=B-N\F
NAZ+RER)
Sub-total:
A 1,000,000 - - (200,000) - 800,000
Sub-total for Directors:
EE 21,700,000 41,400,000 - (200,000)  (41,400,000) 21,500,000
Others
Hity
Employees 10.1.2014 09.01.2019 0.4700 700,000 - - (700,000) - -
(-] 03.7.2014 02.07.2019 0.4150 800,000 - - (800,000) - -
30.11.2020 0.4150 900,000 - - (660,000 - 240,000
30.11.2021 0.4150 1,350,000 - - (990,000 - 360,000
22.7.2015 22.07.2020 0.9200 13,260,000 - - (13,260,000 - -
21.09.2015 20.09.2020 1.0800 1,500,000 - - (1,200,000 - 300,000
01.03.2016 28.02.2021 0.6100 1,200,000 - - (1,200 OOO) - -
10.08.2018 10.08.2023 0.2570 - 41,400,000 - (41,400,000) -
Sub-total for employees:
EE/it: 19,710,000 41,400,000 - (18,810,000)  (41,400,000) 900,000
Consultants
B[ 27.10.2015 26.10.2020 1.2860 7,000,000 - - - - 7,000,000
Sub-total for others:
Hr/het: 26,710,000 41,400,000 - (18,810,000)  (41,400,000) 7,900,000
Total:
o 48,410,000 82,800,000 - (19,010,000)  (82,800,000) 29,400,000
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of its shares in the hands
of the public throughout the Year and up to the date of this Annual
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions between the
Group and its connected persons (as defined under the Listing
Rules) which are subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing
Rules.

The related party transactions set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements of this Annual Report do not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Changes in directors’ information in respect of the period between the
publication date of the 2017/2018 annual report and this report, which
are required to be disclosed pursuant to the requirement of Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out in the section of “Directors’
and Senior Management’s Profile” of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
risk management, internal controls and financial reporting matters
including a review of the annual results for the year ended 31 March
2019.

RBEREZZERE
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. The contents of the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” form the business review as
contained in this Directors’ report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 have been audited by the auditor of the Company, ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited.

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as the auditor of the
Company following the retirement of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 August
2016.

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned and ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 31 March 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditors of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. KWAN Chun Wai Roy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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CEERRE

The Board considers that good corporate governance of the Company
is vital to protect the interests of the shareholders and enhance the
performance of the Group. The Board adopts the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 (“CG
Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 (“Model Code”) to the Listing Rules as the Company’s
corporate governance code and as the Company’s code of conduct
for Directors’ securities transactions (on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code) respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had made specific enquiry of all the Directors and each
of the Directors confirmed that he has complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code during the financial year ended
31 March 2019.

ADOPTION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRINCIPLES

The Board is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the
financial year ended 31 March 2019 except for the following deviation:

(1) Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides,
inter alia, that non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to
re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term. However, they are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every three years in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

(2) Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that
the roles of Chairman and chief executive officer
(“CEO”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company were both
performed by Mr. KWAN Chun Wai Roy (“Mr. Kwan”), an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 3 July 2018. The Board
considers that having Mr. Kwan to act as the Chairman and
CEO of the Company would enhance the operation efficiency
and core competitiveness of the Group, more clearly define the
organizational structure, and simplify the Group’s decision-making
mechanism. Therefore, the Board considers that such deviation is
beneficial to the Group’s overall business development.
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The Board will continue to review the management structure of
the Group from time to time and shall make necessary changes
when appropriate and inform the shareholders of the Company
accordingly.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established a comprehensive approval system.
Matters reserved for the Board’s approval include, among others, the
Company’s material investment decisions and long-term objectives,
financial accounts, declaration of dividend, grant of share options,
competent management, maintenance of internal control systems
and risk management systems, and compliance with statutory and
regulatory obligations.

Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share the responsibility for
proper direction and management of the Company. Daily operations
and administration are delegated to the management.

The management implements the Board’s decisions, makes business
proposals and reports to the Board on the overall performance
of the Group. Daily operations and administration of the business
were delegated to the executive Directors (“ED(s)”) and the senior
management of the Company.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised 6 Directors,
consisting of 2 EDs and 4 independent non-executive Directors
(“INED(s)”). Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section of “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” of this Annual
Report.

During the Year, the Board had held 4 regular Board meetings. Out
of the 4 regular Board meetings, 2 of them were held to discuss and/
or approve the annual and the interim financial performance/results
of the Group while 2 of them were held to discuss, among other
things, project contemplated by the Group and the legal matters of
the Group. The draft minutes of Board meetings were prepared by
the company secretary of the Company and circulated to all Directors
for comments within a reasonable time. The approved minutes are
maintained by the company secretary and available for inspection by
all Directors at request.
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The change of Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report and their attendance of the regular Board meetings and the

general meetings held during the Year are set out below.

METIT o

RAFERBERARSERZESTEY  ULRRAE
FREBTZEHEFEERRBRAGZHER

Attendance of

Attendance of the AGM on
regular Board 14 September
Capacity meetings* 2018*
R-ZZ-N\F
hA+HmBEZ
EHEEEER BREFAKE
Director = 54 s R s R
KWAN Chun Wai Roy ik 42 ED, Chairman & CEO 3/3 1/1
(appointed as ED, Chairman (R—ZE—N\F+LHA=H HITEE - TFH
and CEO on 3 July 2018) EZERNTES  XF  THEHR
FRITBEH)
DING Lei T% ED 4/4 1/1
(appointed as ED on (RZZE—N\FEA—B #WITEF
1 April 2018) BZERWITESF)
TAN Teng Hong PR IR ED, Chairman & CEO 1/1 0/0
(resigned on 3 July 2018) (R—ZBE—N\E+tA=B HTEE IFEFXK
BE{E) TEHE
CHI Dong Eun st RAR INED 4/4 1/1
B IEHITESE
DENG Yougao HES INED 4/4 0/1
(appointed on 1 April 2018) (M=—ZE—N\FWHA—H BUFHNTESF
BEZ )
WONG Chi Yan Z2ERE INED 4/4 1/1
(appointed on 14 May 2018) (R=Z—N\FHA+MNHE BIUIFERTES
BEZE)
AU Kin Wah & g = INED 2/2 0/0
(appointed on 30 September (R—Z—\ENA=+H BIIEHTES
2018) EZE)
YONG Peng Tak 15 & INED 2/2 1/1
(resigned on 30 September (R=ZZ—N\FLA=Z1+H BIYFRTES
2018) BE{E)
CHUNG Yuk Lun i85 B INED 2/2 0/1
(resigned on 30 September (R=ZZE—N\FNLA=1H BIUFEKITESF
2018) B (E)

*

respective Director’s tenure

During the Year, none of the Directors above has or maintained any
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship with

any of the other Directors.
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Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of any possible legal actions against the Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. TAN Teng Hong was appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company with effect from 7 June 2017 and resigned from the
same position with effect from 3 July 2018.

Mr. KWAN Chun Wai Roy (“Mr. Kwan”) was appointed as the
Chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 3 July 2018.

The Board considers that the roles of Chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company performed by the same individual, Mr. Kwan
(from 3 July 2018 onwards) will enhance the operation efficiency
and core competitiveness of the Group, more clearly define the
organisational structure, and simplify the Group’s decision-making
mechanism, and thus was beneficial to the Group’s overall business
development.

The Board also considers that there are adequate balance of power
and safeguards in place and will review and monitor this situation
periodically and will ensure that present structure would not impair
the balance of power of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual written confirmations of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of
the INEDs and considers that each of the INEDs to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional development such as
attending seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

The Company also continuously updates all Directors on the latest
developments and changes of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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Every newly appointed Director has been given a briefing session
conducted by the Company, with a comprehensive induction package
covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director
to ensure the awareness of responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees and the holding of offices of the
Group (including Directors) were based on internal equity factors and
external market conditions and will be reviewed from time to time.

The remuneration of the employees including EDs generally consists
of:

— fixed salary/allowance — which is set according to the duties,
responsibilities, skills, experiences and market influences;

— pension — which is based on the Mandatory Provident Fund
Contribution Scheme or the local statutory pension scheme;

— short-term variable incentive — which may include commission,
discretionary cash bonus depending on the achievement of
short-term corporate objectives and/or personal targets;

— long-term variable incentive — which may include share options
designed to encourage long-term commitment; and

— other benefits in kind — which may include accommodation,
company car and related services.

The remuneration of independent non-executive Directors was at a
fixed monthly/quarterly/annual payment.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Throughout the Year, the Company had maintained a remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) as required under the CG
Code. As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee is
composed of two INEDs, namely Mr. CHI Dong Eun (Chairman) and
Mr. AU Kin Wah and one ED, Mr. KWAN Chun Wai Roy. Adopting code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) in the CG Code, the Remuneration Committee
is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration, compensation and benefits of Directors
and senior management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available and accessible on the Company’s website
at http://successdragonintl.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/05/E_
Remuneration-Committee-Terms-of-Reference.pdf.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee had held 2 physical
meetings for the purpose of considering the remuneration of the
Directors.

The change of members of the Remuneration Committee during the
Year and up to the date of this report and their attendance of the
Remuneration Committee meetings held during the Year are set out
below.

TEERRE

REFE - FMEZESCET2RELEEH  BE
EREFHMH -

A=K

REAFEMBEAREARZFHEZEGKEER
B ARRARFEETZHFMNEZEGERZHER
MBI o

Attendance*
Member RE& HEB R~
CHI Dong Eun (Chairman) MERIR(FE) 2/2
KWAN Chun Wai Roy (appointed on 3 July 2018) RBREZE(R_Z—/\FtA=ZHEZT) 1/1
AU Kin Wah (appointed on 30 September 2018) EREEVR_ZE—N\FNLA=THEZT) 0/0
TAN Teng Hong (resigned on 3 July 2018) BREA(RZZE—N\FLA=HET) 1/1
YONG Peng Tak (resigned on 30 September 2018) g FE (W -ZE—\ENA=FTHE 1) 2/2
CHUNG Yuk Lun (resigned on 30 September 2018) #EE B (RN - — N \FENA=FTHET) 2/2

* number of attended meetings/number of meetings held during
respective Director’s tenure

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors
and emoluments of senior management by band for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements in the Annual
Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Throughout the Year, the Company had maintained a nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) as required under the CG
Code. As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee is
composed of two INEDs, namely Mr. CHI Dong Eun and Mr. AU
Kin Wah and one ED, Mr. KWAN Chun Wai Roy (Chairman). The
Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee had held 1 physical
meeting for the purpose of reviewing the nomination policy and the
structure, size and composition of the Board.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. The Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies
suitably qualified candidates to become Board members. The
Nomination Committee also ensures the Board comprises members
with mixed skills and experience with appropriate weights necessary
to accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies,
operation, challenges and opportunities.

In considering the appointment of new Directors, the Nomination
Committee assessed the relevant candidates on criteria such as
integrity, independent mindedness, experience, skill and ability to
commit time and effort to carry out their duties and responsibilities
effectively etc., and made recommendation to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
and accessible on the Company’s website at http:/successdragonintl.
com/wp-content/uploads/2016/05/e_Nominaation-Committee-Terms-
of-Reference.pdf.

The change of members of the Nomination Committee during the
Year and up to the date of this report and their attendance of the
Nomination Committee meetings held during the Year are set out
below.
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Attendance*
Member RE& HEB R
KWAN Chun Wai Roy (Chairman) k& (ZE) 0/0

(appointed on 3 July 2018) (R=ZF-N\FLtA=ZREZE)

CHI Dong Eun St R AR 1/1
AU Kin Wah (appointed on 30 September 2018) EREVR_ZE—N\FNLA=THEZT) 0/0
TAN Teng Hong (resigned on 3 July 2018) BRE A (RZZE—\FLA=HET) 1/1
CHUNG Yuk Lun (resigned on 30 September 2018) #EE B (N - — N \FENA=FTHET) 1/1
YONG Peng Tak (resigned on 30 September 2018) #%5FE (R - —N\FHLA=Z+HET) 1/1
* number of attended meetings/number of meetings held during  * EHESHEAY  SESTHRNBTZEHNH

respective Director’s tenure
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has, upon the recommendation of the Company’s
Nomination Committee, adopted a board diversity policy for purpose
of maintaining a diversity of the Board which can in turn enhance the
Board’s decision-making capability. In assessing potential candidates
for the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider the guidelines
and factors set out in the board diversity policy with a view that any
appointment to the Board will be based on merit, having regard to the
ability of candidates to complement and expand the skills, knowledge
and experience of the Board as a whole. Diversity of the Board can
be achieved through consideration of a number of relevant factors,
including but not limited to independence, age, gender, ethnicity and
cultural background, education, skills, knowledge and experience.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of cultural
background, education, skills and experience) to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee will review
the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

The Nomination Committee considers that the current composition of
the Board is characterised by diversity after taking into account the
Company’s own business model and specific needs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Throughout the Year, the Company had maintained an audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) as required under the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee is
composed of three INEDs, namely Mr. AU Kin Wah (Chairman),
Mr. CHI Dong Eun and Ms. WONG Chi Yan. The Audit Committee
is responsible for considering appointment of the external
auditor, reviewing the interim and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board and the Group’s internal
control systems. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
http://successdragonintl.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/e_Audit-
Committee-Terms-of-Reference.pdf.

During the Year, the Audit Committee had held 2 physical meetings.
Annual/interim results and/or internal audit of the Group were
discussed during the meetings.
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The change of members of the Audit Committee during the Year
and up to the date of this report and their attendance of the Audit

RAFERREAREAN I ERERERE S
B URRAFERTZERESEEHZLER

Committee meetings held during the Year are set out below. MEFNAT e

Attendance*
Member RE& HEB R
AU Kin Wah (Chairman) e E ) 1/1

(appointed on 30 September 2018) (R—ZE—N\FEALA=THEZT)

WONG Chi Yan (appointed on 30 September 2018) &HE B (R_Z—N\FHLA=Z+HEZT) 1/1
CHI Dong Eun R IR 2/2
YONG Peng Tak (resigned on 30 September 2018) #%5FiE (R - —N\FHLA=Z+HET) 1/1
CHUNG Yuk Lun (resigned on 30 September 2018) #EE B (N - — N \FENA=FTHET) 1/1

*

number of attended meetings/number of meetings held during
respective Director’s tenure

For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee
had performed the following duties:

— reviewed and commented on the half-yearly and the annual
financial report of the Group of the financial year under review
before submission to the Board for adoption and publication;

— met with the external auditor and independent accountant to
discuss the financial matters of the Group and reviewed their
findings, recommendations and representations;

— reviewed and approved the terms of engagement and scope
of services of the external auditor, internal audit function and
independent accountant;

— reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

— reviewed the Company’s internal control systems and risk
management systems;

— reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee in
compliance with updated CG Code; and

— reviewed the policy of corporate governance of the Company
and performed the corporate governance function in
accordance with D.3.1 of the CG Code.

*
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remunerations in respect of audit and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 March 2019 provided by the Company’s auditor,
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, are as follows:

TEERRE

¥ B8 B %7 A

ARBZBMPEREGTMEBMARIANE
ECT-NF-A=Z+HUEFERHERNIEE
TR Z H BT

HK$'000
FET
Audit services EZRB 950
Non-audit services including review on annual results FEEZRE(BEEHNFEZE 130
announcement, interim results announcement and preparation BRAERPHEELE MU
of report of continuing connected transactions MGEFEREISRE)
Total Et 1,080

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the financial
year under review, the Directors have:

— based on a going concern basis;

— selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

— made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and
reasonable.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires, confirm that they
are not aware of any material uncertainties to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on page 67.

BREEKZERARAR

BRAMBBERIE2EME

EEHACSHEERUAEERE - RAEEM
BEERUZERER 0

- BRESBELLEEERHAKE:

- HEEEEABRLEBER: X

- fEhE

" RFRAEZ ARG -

EFNMEHEEERNRER  REL MBS LA
EHARRRFELERNTFAEARMZIENX
RS Z A B R HEE B 3 -

ARBZEMAABHRERRZERETBAERSE
67TEZ B ZBENRENA °

—B-NZ-hEEEHE 43



Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and reviewing
an effective system of internal control and safeguarding the assets in
the interests of the Group and the shareholders.

The Group has established policies and procedures for approval
and control of expenditures. Pursuant to a risk-based methodology,
the Board plans its internal control review with resources being
focused on higher risk areas. The Board has delegated to the senior
management of the Group the implementation of such systems of
internal controls. The management throughout the Group maintains
and monitors the internal control system on an ongoing basis to
ensure that the policies and procedures in place are adequate.
Any findings and recommendations would be discussed by the
management and followed up properly and timely.

World Link Corporate Finance Limited, the Internal Audit function of
the Group performed independent reviews and reported regularly
the review results to the Board through the Audit Committee on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems. The Board, through the Internal Audit function
of the Group, has conducted annual review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group including the relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. Such procedures are designed to manage rather than
to eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The review report showed that the Group
maintained an effective internal control system and no major control
deficiency had been identified during the Year. The scope and
findings of the review had been reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The Board also reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of the employees of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

In order to promote transparency, accountability and responsibility in
respect of the operation of a listed company, and for the maintenance
of good corporate governance, the Company, assisted by legal
advisors and financial advisors, would notify the Stock Exchange and
make relevant disclosure to the public as soon as practicable of any
inside information of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, the Board may whenever it
thinks fit call SGMs, and shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary, to require a SGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s
head office and principal place of business (the “Head Office”) at
Unit 403A, 4/F., Block B, Sea View Estate, 4-6 Watson Road, North
Point, Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one
or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board to call the
SGM and include the resolution in the agenda for such SGM.

If the Board do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with the detail
contact information to the company secretary at the Head Office at
Unit 403A, 4/F., Block B, Sea View Estate, 4-6 Watson Road, North
Point, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

BREEKZERARAR

TEERRE

i R A
BRRREHAG(RRBIAG)

RIBFQRARFESSE  EFETARRAEERAR
BERFRAE  MRRHERBRFERRRHE
AR DR+ D2 — U AT RAR BB ARG LT
RRENRR  BRAEFLHEEER AEFE
FRAMEBREFSAMBREIAS » UEIE
ZERMIANERNER: MERAEARRELZE
SKAR R fE AT -

RERMNATIBAEREN WERERAEER
REARRAFBZ @R EERTELE MU ((RNE
BN 2B Bt BERE4-658 5 K EBES
EA403AE) TR AIMEBKHEA - ZERAE
BEZMORABERESHER—BRALEERASE
EBEZEHXMH -

ZEREHARBZEBRNELIBRRZE  — &
BEBRZENTI  ARWESEREFTSIMMK
RERIRE  IRNZBRRFIREZEEAHA
BHRER-

HMEFSYENXHZERIEE ARG 2IRAEL
THERAE  MERARXBERREZZEER
ER—FULZERMZRATETARKE @ EE
MEMERzAE 2BTRHASENH Ll B
Etm=1EA -

RERRAEREER

MBRBERBAFASHBEFIAG LIRS EE
BREEB B ER(MU AEBILAREEEI6
SRF S KEBREAEL03AE)  MARMERERER
BEZBANE BEPREIPAFMABEER 2B
KRR RBZEEROELDEZRE  — KB
BZERTW RrAMEBEREZTeNZBER
REZHEBERIAGERER -

—2-NZ-hEEEHE 45



Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

() Not less than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than 20 clear
business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company in
an AGM and not less than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than
10 clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing
if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company
in any SGM; or

(b) Not less than 14 clear days’ notice or not less than 10 clear
business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company in
all other SGMs.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. Shareholders
may at any time make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also
make enquiries to the Board in writing with their contact information
and deposited at the Head Office at Unit 403A, 4/F., Block B, Sea
View Estate, 4-6 Watson Road, North Point, Hong Kong for the
attention of the company secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company believes that an effective shareholder communication
policy enhances its strong culture of disclosure and its commitment
to keeping shareholders informed. The shareholders communication
policy (the “Policy”) was established by the Board to reflect the
Board’s belief that shareholders should have access to the latest
information about the Company, utilising, where practicable,
electronic communications together with more traditional means of
communication. The Company has in place policies and procedures
for the purpose of compliance with our continuous and periodic
disclosure obligations as required by the Stock Exchange.
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Clear communication and easy access to information are important
objectives of the Company’s communication strategy. Information is
communicated to shareholders regularly through:

° Announcements, circulars and other releases made to the Stock
Exchange and media;

° Financial reports including annual reports and interim reports;
° Annual general meetings and other general meetings; and
° The Company’s website www.successdragonintl.com.

The annual general meetings and other general meetings provide
important opportunities to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and for shareholders to express their views. The Board
encourages shareholder attendance and participation at general
meetings.

The Policy is reviewed
effectiveness.

regularly by the Board to ensure its

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. AU YEUNG Ming Yin Gordon who is
a representative from an external secretarial services provider as the
company secretary of the Company. The primary contact person of
the Company with the company secretary is Mr. WONG Kok Hon, the
financial controller of the Company. The role of the company secretary
is to ensure effective information flows and communication among
Directors, as well as between shareholders and management of the
Company. The company secretary is also responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary. During the Year, the company
secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update her skills and knowledge.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The bye-law of the Company is available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. There were no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the Year.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

RiIR - ERERERE

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “We”) are pleased to present
our Environmental, Social and Governance (“‘ESG”) Report (the
“ESG Report”). The report concerns environmental and social
impacts, policies and initiatives of the Group to demonstrate our
long-term commitment in ensuring that our activities, at all levels,
are economically, socially and environmentally sustainable. Additional
information in relation to the Group’s corporate governance and
financial performance can be referred to our 2018/19 Annual Report
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The ESG Report is prepared according to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “Reporting Guide”) as set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
With reference to the definition stated in the ESG Reporting Guide,
the presentation of our ESG Report divides those aspects and key
performance indicators (“KPI”), which are considered to be relevant
and material to our Group’s businesses and operations, into four
subject areas: Environmental Protection, Employment and Labour
Practices, Operating Practices and Community Contribution. This
report has been complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.

The table underneath showed aspects on the ESG Guide to be
assessed and those ESG issues were determined to be material to
the Group. This ESG Report mainly covers the policies, initiatives
and performance of the Group’s major operations in Hong Kong and
Macau offices, unless specified, in relation to these issues, for the
period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 (“FY2019”).

BRE BRI AR AR ([AAE ) REME AR (TR
SEIKIHEMADMARSEMNRE  HLEREAR
((RE - -HehkEaDRE(RE HERERY
Do RNBESRAEENRENLETE - BX
MERE  AETRMAEME IR EREMESRSE
BT TEEELE HEMRESTEOAFE
1 ARARELCREARMBRRAZAMESR
A2HBEMBE—_T-NAF=ZA=+—-RLFEZ
—E-NAEFERS -

ABH  UARERBRERB(EBHARIHNE
B 2R (8 52 B 1) 8 % b h 4R RUD Y 8277 OB

B HeakEBREEINHRSHESIDMER - K
BRI - LB REIAWMEHEIIMRENEE &M
IR  HEREARERRASBEAEBMEBNL
EREEARHBAEENSESTEMERERER
(REARERERD D AMNET EHE  RIFHRE
BREMNSHEE BLEBULMRER - A&E
RIBRE HEREABRSHEIMBNAEITE
SRR mAER -

TRIVRETHENERE £ gREREIITHER
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EAMETEREN T\ FONA—RAE_FT—
NE=ZRA=+—BHE(-ZE-NFHRFE]) "
AEERBAERRIIMEENETBZXFENZKS
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HIIREE HER

ESG Aspects as set forth Material ESG issues ERESINERE - AEBEARNERESE -
in ESG Guide for the Group HERERFIE HERERBE
(A) Environmental (A) RiE
Al Emissions Electricity consumption Al BERR YD B
A2 Use of Resources Use of energy A2 BR{EMA gEIRE A
A3 The Environment and A3 RIENBAREIR

Natural Resources
(B) Social (B) #&
B1 Employment Labour practices Bl E& BT ER
B2 Health and Safety Workplace health and safety B2 @ERETR THGHEREREZ S
B3 Development and Training  Employee development and B3 # & & iF BT #E NS

training
Anti-child and forced labour
Supply chain management
Responsible gaming and product
responsibility
Anti-corruption, fraud prevention
and anti-money laundering
Community programs, employee
volunteering and donation

B4 Labour Standards

B5 Supply Chain Management
B6 Product Responsibility

B7 Anti-corruption

B8 Community Investment

B4 B2k RYEIRESIST

B5 ftEdEE 12 HpEEEE

B EmET EEABYESREM
51T

B7 R&EJ5 RES - FEHFERMX
ik
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group is determined to be a responsible enterprise and is
committed to perfecting its business. In order to define what are
relevant and material to our business with respect to sustainability,
the key is to understand what issues that our stakeholders concerned
most. We define our stakeholders as people who affect our business
or who are affected by our business. Our stakeholders include
government, shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and
community. In our daily business, we actively exchange information
with our stakeholders through our transparent platform while we are
devoted to continuous improvement of our communication system.

R -#HERERERE

MNEHEEES R

AEEBROLKA—RBEENECEIB IR TE
BENER EREHRMEBOAIHELERRA
BEEREEEZRNEZR AR —HS2EHRM
N EABEERBEEORE - RABHRMON R
HEEEERAMLARMNEBEZELRRM
MEBAFZEOA - RPINMEEBESBBRA
BER-FEP BT #HERMLE - £RMNEE
E%T > RABEERMANEBFEEBEL N
M BEEZREM R - RO T E 2
ZHMBBRER -

Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
MBZAEBEE BB EFR BEEDE
Government e Operate in compliance with the law e Law-abiding operations
e Tax payment in accordance with the laws e Tax payment on time and in full
BT o B PE o IEBRKE
o ORI o IRIFTRRMAT
Shareholders e |mplement corporate governance and create e Optimise internal control and risk
value management
e |nformation disclosure e Release operating data in due course
i 3R e Binh ¥ E R REERIE o BAL ARSI K R R E B
o [EEHE o RIS L BUE
Customers e Improve operational efficiency e Form strategic partnership with leading

e Direct communication

2P o BIEEBE
s HEERB
Employees e Positive work environment

e Career development platform
e Remuneration and benefits
e Occupational health and safety

il
H
[ ]

RIF TR
s BEERFSE
o Hr B IR 42 A
s BMEREEZE

Suppliers * Receive payment on time
e Business ethics and credit standing

R o AU [E TR IR
s MEXEREEE

Community e Contribute continuously on the development
of the Macau community
e Protect the environment
Zan) s HERRMMEMERIERR
o (REIRIF

fintech companies
e Direct hotline
e HCEESHMBRAREIEBBSIERHFER
o HERE

e Causal and festival gatherings

e Transparent promotion channel

e Competitive remuneration package

e Implements health and safety management
system

s HiRRE

s HFEMRENEARE

e AEFNMEM TR

s EMBERERLZEEERM

e Payment schedule

e Fulfilment of obligations under any contract
in accordance with laws

o TREF &R

s RBIZPIBITEMANETHNEE

e Promote Responsible Gaming in Macau
e Adhere to green operations

s HEBMAEEEREY
o KT EBEE
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

RiIR - ERERERE

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. We are also committed to
maintaining a long-term partnership with our stakeholders and are
actively engaged in addressing their concerns with timely follow-
up actions. If you, as one of our stakeholders, have any questions
about the content of the ESG Report or comments on the Group’s
sustainability issues, please contact us at ir@successdragonintl.com.

MATERIALITY MATRIX

In FY2019, the Group carried out materiality assessment on a number
of ESG issues in order to identify which issues were crucial to the
Group’s business and were of the utmost concern to stakeholders.
It helps the Group to ensure our business development can meet
the expectations and requirements of stakeholders. The Group has
identified 22 ESG issues covering environmental, social and operation,
and has invited both internal and external stakeholders to assess the
materiality of the ESG issues through a scoring tool and interviews.
The Group’s management has reviewed the ranking of materiality
of the ESG issues and then disclosed the results in this report.
The results of materiality assessment prioritised stakeholder inputs
and made the Group focused on the material aspects for actions,
achievements and reporting.

AEBEREGEHNET  EPMHENRER M
BERERNEBEREMNMEHNEBEENERZESE - |
MEFNRERMNMNSHEERFTREANAE
B {5 X 3B B K R RO BR A 4 B TR AR 22 B R OR (4P 0
ﬁﬁ MR BTERERMOMEAMEE SRR

ﬁ@&amﬁimﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ$$l
WW%E%E%QﬁEHMﬁ 338 AT TR B

%3 1f : ir@successdragonintl.com °

EEMEE
#*?—hi%&¢§'$%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%\ﬁ@
LEARASEETEEMTG  UWREEAEBER
BEEEZRHMGF m%%wﬁ&m$aoﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
AEBBEREEBERET AN ZABENGRE
RER - AEEBDKT22BRERE - LT REE
HIRE  HEeNEAREE  WEFERIRINEFZE
HEEERIITAREA  FHERE HERE
AEEMNEZN AEEEEECEHRE 4T
LEABSEMNEZULG  TREAREERE -&
EHFENERELERMNZHEBEENERILE
AEBEZESTEY KR KRENEZ @ -

The Group’s materiality matrix of ESG issues in FY2019: RZE-NEFWREE  AEERE HSRER
EEMNEZSEER:
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Environmental issues

Social issues

R -#HERERERE

Operation issues

REZRE HresE EESE

1. Greenhouse gas emissions 9. Local community engagement 17. Economic value generated
BERBHK Bt R BEER B EE
Energy consumption 10. Community investment 18. Corporate governance
Be R OE #E HERE tEER
Water consumption 11.  Occupational health and safety 19. Anti-corruption
FEoKkE BERERZD R&3
Waste 12.  Labour standards in supply chain 20. Supply chain management
EED RS T AR g E IR
Environmental impact of 13. Training and development 21. Customer satisfaction

construction Fl &R

EPREE
22. Customer privacy
BEPILE

e T3 Bk R IR 35 52 28 14. Employee welfare
Green buildings certification 1E B8 A
EREERE 15. Inclusion and equal opportunities

Customer engagement in Hp Rk FEges

environmental issues 16. Talent attraction and retention

BREZENREP2H ol RiEEB AL
Use of chemicals

EAEEm

(A) ENVIRONMENT

The Group considers that a healthy environment is crucial to
the well-being of human beings and every one of our society,
through providing the foundation of a sustainable economy.
Because of this, we, as part of the planet Earth, believe our
planet deserves our best thinking and investment.

In accordance with our environmental vision, the Group is
committed to upholding high environmental standards to fulfil
relevant requirements under applicable laws and regulations
during the operation of our business.

As a company that is investment holding and the Group
is principally engaged in provision of outsourced business
process management for electronic gaming machines in Macau,
information technology services business and money lending
business, we bear low impact on carbon emission and the
environment. Nevertheless, the Group continues to manage our
environmental footprint via reducing our resource consumption
and carbon emissions at all business levels.

BREEKZERARAR

(A) BiE

AEERR REFNEHEZEEAHEER
MER - BABMRMALEPESEANREL
WEREZ - Bt - R —0OF - &
FIRE1E TR AT I8 A S 4T B9 280K R 32 8 1 15 F 4P
)iy B o

BRERRMNERERESTENESR  AREX
ARERDREFRE  UERMAXBKLES
BITEREAREROBBER -

ER—RIREERDR » REBETEORFIK
FREESTFBERINAEBREEE RS -
BB BRI EB R NERT - R
BMEREZER/) - BENOL  AREEB
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

RB

A & A2 Emissions and Use of Resources

52

HERERHRE

Throughout our operations, we consider
stewardship as an essential component of our corporate
responsibility and are therefore exceptionally committed to

environmental

A & A2 BE B M & TR E R

promoting environmental protection activities in harmony with

economic development.

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out by the
Stock Exchange, our environmental performances of “Energy
Use and Emissions” and “Use of Resources” during FY2019 are

Eﬁi 4R

/\:I/Fl

sl

EREZELET  HMARRRREERD
%f&ﬁ’]éﬁ BRERS
R AR 10 7

A 1t 4 B B D 7 1R
ARRRIEH -

RBBXPAEMNRE HERERRS
BRE—Z-NFHRFEN8E
FRABERR | e [ & IR F A | 75 T 9 3R 35 48 2 an

RAE

tabulated as below. TR
Energy Use and Emissions BEIR (E F A HE L
For the
year ended
31 March 2018
(“FY2018”)
BE-Z-N\F
=A=+-—H
FY2019 IEFE
Environmental indicators Unit —E-hEF ==—-Ng
REER B MBFE MERFE]
Air emissions’
JBE SR BE Bl
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions g N/A 3,488
A 2.1 ¥ (NOx) BE 7t = TiE A
Sulphur oxides (SOx) emissions g N/A 60
i &1 ¥ (SOx) BE 1K 7 i A
Particulate matter (PM) emission g N/A 257
& KLF (PM) BE B 7 I3 F
Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions
BERBHK
Total GHG emissions? kg CO,e 43,882 66,725
mEREENEE? Fr= %4& XE 2
GHG emissions intensity kg CO.e (per employee) 1,021 1,420
mEREHENREE Fr= %fb mEE
(BEEE)
Direct emissions (Scope 1) kg CO,e N/A 7,832
BB (EET) TR-_SHRES I3 F
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) kg CO,e 36,813 55,007
BB (FE2) FR-ZGAIREE
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) kg CO,e 7,069 3,886

Ho A ) 5% B B (B /E3)
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Scope 1: Direct greenhouse gas emissions from operations
that are owned or controlled by the Group.

Scope 2: Energy indirect emissions resulting from generation
of purchased electricity that is consumed by the
Group’s controlled equipment or its operations
within the physical building boundary including
electricity purchased from power companies.

Scope 3: All other indirect greenhouse gas emissions
that occurred outside the Group, including both
upstream and downstream emissions.

! The Group sold its only motor vehicle at the beginning of FY2019.
Therefore, no air emission was generated by the Group.

2 Greenhouse gas emissions can be divided into three separate
areas (i) direct; (i) indirect; and (iii) other indirect.

The Group is as committed as ever to conserving precious
resources, believing that every small step will make a difference.
Besides implementation of energy saving initiatives in the office,
the Group also promotes other eco-friendly measures to reduce
disposal of non-hazardous waste in its operations.

Contributing to the efforts to reduce paper usage, the Group
has encouraged paperless solution for the operation. The
electronic information system is encouraged for documents
storage, material sharing or internal administrative documents.
It considerably improves operational efficiency while helping
create a paperless operation system, thereby contributing to
waste reduction and resource conservation. When using paper,
duplex printing is chose as the default mode for most printers,
employees are requested to put a gentle reminder “Please
consider environment before printing” on the email, pre-set the
incoming fax to be converted to pdf files and transferred directly
to server, etc.

R -#HERERERE

#ET: BASEHEAIESNEBERE
EEMRERBHEN-

g#E2: AEEZHNREIENERE
EYRIREENEEMERNE
BEENEANEREESR 2
REHERRBENED -

#EI: AEBEARIINELNMEHEMME
BORERBBIN B LT
e

! REEBR_Z-NEHREEFYHER K
—E o Fit  REEIW MEE S REHE o

2 AERBHRAISA=-(EAEBIEER:
(ii) s 2+ R (i) E A0 R % o

AEBE-—EFNIRRERFER  REER
BOREER - B AEBITEIRLE BN
AEBETETHEMRRIER REBZEB
BRPRIEEERERRY -

RRLERERE AREZBEXRBEZE
TERARSEHD  SBAEFESRSE
IXHERF  MRAFTHABER T - &
HERRERTEENEX  RABEPEIZE
MAEM R R - A BB D BEY AL
BIR - EEAAKE  REBUTHHRERE
TEEITHRRRBEN Y BERKETHE
AP H LB ETEIRTE BIRR AR R
R BERENEEERER Spdf XL
HEEXRIRERS -
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRSE

54

FY2019 FY2018

Environmental indicators Unit —E-NEF —E-N\F
REERZ B BBEE BHREE
Waste
BEY
Total non-hazardous waste produced tonnes 6.8 10.6
FEXREEEVHEE U
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity tonnes (per employee) 0.2 0.2
MEEEREEENEE ME(ZEEER)
Total hazardous waste produced?® tonnes N/A N/A
FEXEEBEENESS 158 A3 A i@ A
Hazardous waste produced intensity tonnes (per employee) N/A N/A
MEEEEERNER M(BEEE) & A ~EA
Use of Resources
EiRA A
Electricity purchases for consumption kWh 44,587 67,961
BEHME TR B
Electricity consumption intensity kWh (per employee) 1,037 1,446
HERE TRE(EZESR)
Amount of water consumption* m? N/A N/A
FEKE ST OK A~ 3 A i@ A
Water consumption intensity m? (per employee) N/A N/A
BKREE NAKEEESR) A~ 3 A i@ A
Total packaging material used for finished

products® kg N/A N/A
B mE Rz BREMEEES T 3 A i@ A
Amount of packaging material per unit produced kg N/A N/A
BHERNBEMHREE T 3 A i@ A

In the future, the Group will continue our commitment to
environmental protection and strive to build a greener and
healthier environment to fulfil our responsibilities as a member

of the community we all live in.

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/19
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A3.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Group strictly regulates the operation of our business to
ensure the compliance with local laws and regulations relating
to environmental protection and pollutant emissions. In FY2019,
there was no case of material non-compliance with the Air
Pollution Control Ordinance, the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the
Macau Environmental Law (Decree-Law No.2/91/M) and other
relevant laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that have a significant
impact on environment in Macau and Hong Kong. In addition,
there was no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result
of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in
FY2019.

° During FY2019, the Group has not identified any hazardous
waste was produced in its core business.
4 The Group believes that its water consumption is mainly used

for domestic purpose and defines to be irrelevant to the Group’s
operation. No issues have been identified at this moment.

RE #HEREAR

&

RNEE AR R BRI T 28 R BT
EHARBERE RS RAMEE RN E A =EE
B-RZE-NEURFE  RFBEER
ERZERSEEFED - BEMEEKRY B
Wmﬁi(ymmﬂiQ&E@ﬁ%§ﬁ
BERBEYER - Ak S C REA
ﬁiiﬂiﬁﬁmﬂﬁ PFIREBEXNEKX
HEMNEATABRRMS - 1IN RZE—N
FPREE  RATEFREREBEZER
MARE XIS HEHAORE -

¢ REZZ-NFHRFE  ARELEIHHH
EAHEERLEBELEZBEEEREY

¢ REBRR BEKERBEIERNEM
Mo WHAEAEEESERR - AKREEAH
WEEHH HARER

5 No use of packaging materials since the Group does not have 5 HRRAEBETEEYEQHEIESE RIS
physical products for sale. Therefore, this disclosure is not FERABREME Bt ZBBETEARAE
applicable to the Group. £H -

The Environment and Natural Resources A3. BERBARER
The Group is aware that our major contribution to the AEEE#HT - R ZEREBHERABEIR
greenhouse gas emission and energy footprints lies in the EMEZRERBMINDBOEIERE -
electricity consumption of our office operations. As such, It - BREBFNITREIRBZERAEMN(E
we actively maintain a steady focus on reducing our energy PR E BT BE S92 ) M Z 35 44508 ([ILB) &
consumption to manage our impact on the environment, being BAE) HMESRRESEEEBMERE
committed to observing the “Indoor Temperature Energy Saving FEH—BBE  UEHRMERENEE -

Charter” and the “No Incandescent Light Bulbs (“ILB”) Energy

Saving Charter” introduced by the Environment Bureau of the

Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

During FY2019, the Group developed a number of specific EZZE-NFYRFE REERERMEER

energy-saving initiatives and practices to reduce our BERAZERAEBHEBNMBOLRERE  ~&

greenhouse gas emission and to conserve energy usage BT TRy BT BN - B

throughout our operation, including:

. energy-saving bulbs are widely used in workplaces; . TIESFREZ FE AR B A

. equipment, machines and electronic devices shall be . T BARARME - MW E F R
turned off after office hours;

. indoor temperature is maintained at an optimal level for . ENRERBERSENHE:
comfort;

. electric messaging and video conferences is encouraged . SENE 2 AR 48 & 3 LR
to reduce the number of business trips; =R %5( ;

. “Conserve Energy” stickers are put on at appropriate . FHEER M T RMTE LRI
areas to raise the awareness of energy saving. NRREEHEER -

BEERERARAT —=-NZE-hEEEHES 55



Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRSE

(B)

B1.

56

From the above mitigation measures, the Group believes that it
will change the behaviour of the use of energy in the workplaces
and finally achieve the goal of reducing the greenhouse gas
emission and protecting our environment.

SOCIAL

Employment

At the Group, we owe much of our success to a team of
dedicated and talented workforce. We recognise that our
people essentially form the foundation on which we fulfil
goals and continuously drive our business to new levels of
milestone. We are determined to provide a desirable workplace,
continuous training and prospective career opportunities to our
staff-members, focusing on getting the very best from the staff-
members and helping them achieve their goals throughout their
career path.

In our employee inclusion, we strictly follow the relevant
laws and regulations and our employment policies to select
candidates based on skillsets, experience and expertise.
Equality and diversity is highly respected in our corporate
philosophy during the process of employment, remuneration,
promotion and termination.

As at 31 March 2019, the full-time employees of the Group in
Hong Kong and Macau offices totalled 43 (FY2018: 47), the

(B)

B1.

BB LR AREMEEHRETE
HETE R RHMOE - SEERBDRER
BUYRRRERRZARE -

HE
12 1%

AEBE-ERARMOKDRARIZERY
R—Z#MEMEATENBTHM - MR
BE BMOEIEARTERTRMERA
BROER  WTEESHRMANEBIERD
BREW - BRORALAHMOE TIRHERD
THERE SENEIINMRFOBEERE
T EIRNREBTITESRINKR 18
P PEBRELEEFERBE -

FEERETR  BMEQEBRERERERER
M ERR - RIEXEE - BRMEFNBE
BET - ¥ WM SAMKLNBE
FoRMAMEEESERFEMSEIL -

RZB-NAF=A=+—H TxEEREHE
FORPIMAEN 2B E THBURIBA(ZE—

distribution of workforce is summarized as follows: NFEHBREE :47A) BEIHHEERAT ¢
FY2019 FY2018

—E-NF —E-N\E

Geographical Region i 3 & i) MBEE BEREE
Hong Kong &5 16% 11%
Macau i 84% 89%
100% 100%

FY2019 FY2018

—E-NF —E-N\E

Employment Type EERR BIEE MBREE
Full-time 2B 98% 100%
Part-time 0 2% 0%
100% 100%

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERHSE

FY2019 FY2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Age Distribution FHe DM BIEE M EE
<30 305 AT 37% 34%
30-50 307% £505% 61% 62%
>50 5077 LA £ 2% 4%
100% 100%
FY2019 FY2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Gender 4 5l BHEE BHREE
Male B4 70% 1%
Female pegc 30% 89%
100% 100%

The Group strictly regulates the operation of our business to REBBRBAGRMNERSE  BREE

ensure the compliance with local laws and regulations relating
to employment during the course of operation. In FY2019, there
was no case of material non-compliance with the Employment
Ordinance, the Macau Labour Relation Law (Decree-Law
No.7/2008) and the relevant laws and regulations relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare in Macau and
Hong Kong. In addition, there was no report of significant fines
or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations in FY2019.

ERIETETENERBERBOEEER - 1
“TENFHMBEERE BELRENER(E
B~ CRFIEE B B R KD (F7/20085 )%
L) RMEBFATHBRELRRE BALSE
FoIERRE - RERHE - #e8% - £
b RIRAR - A a5 MR A B e AR RRA
BREEBROEMS - W RZFT-NFHR
FEMEAHERNERMBAIEIEAAMESR
EARFIARKBIEARE o

Health and Work Safety B2. REHEIZE
Bearing in mind that the operational efficiency of an enterprise REBRMECENEERNEMEEMBEL
and the maintenance of a healthy and safe working environment BELZE2MHIERERYEE —HFEFE
for all employees are closely related, the Group has been RAEEITRHFEZENIERE  URE
attaching great importance to a comfortable and safe working fth 19 5 52 A fAD V7 O B 25 RLBS o
environment for our employees which protect them from any
potential occupational hazards.
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The Group has offered various facilities to address the health
and safety needs of our employees, encompassing:

° installing air purifiers in areas where are relatively crowded
such as conference and meeting rooms;

° ensuring ample space between workstations and clean
and tidy common space such as corridors and pantries;

° maintaining sufficient ventilation and lighting system in the
offices;
° offering adjustable chairs and monitor screens for eye

protection at each individual workstation.

The Group also uploaded occupational safety guidelines
including appropriate work postures and posters of proper
lifting method onto the intranet and put up reminder signages
at appropriate areas in offices to encourage healthier living of
employees.

The Group understands that sense of belonging and morale of
the employees are the key drivers of the healthy growth of every
commercial organization. As a result, the Group is determined
to promote open and direct communication between employees
and management. Causal and festival gatherings such as
Christmas and Chinese New Year dinners are organized to
enhance the harmonious sprit throughout the Group.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of our business
to ensure the compliance with local laws and regulations
relating to health and safety during the course of operation.
In FY2019, there was no case of material non-compliance
with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter
509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the General Regulations on
Hygiene and Safety of Commercial Premises, Offices and
Working Areas (Decree-Law No0.37/89/M), the Employees’
Compensation Insurance Ordinance (Decree-Law No. 40/95/
M) and the relevant laws and regulations relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards that have a significant impact in Macau
and Hong Kong. In addition, there was no report of significant
fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations in FY2019.
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R -#HERERERE

Development and Training B3. I REMEI
Considering that each of the position is of unique professional ZEHNBS—EILEEUBENEES K K
needs, the Group ensures that every new joiner receives proper EERREUTABNEBEIESEENA
orientation training and mentoring in order to help them adapt BEFIAnigE - LAEB M MIFEIRE EH A T
to the new working environment affirmatively. Training programs {EIRSE - NEE M AR S TR Tt
are committed by the Group to new joiners in different ways for BE NSRS bEME - BEEZ S -
specific skill development, in-house system, corporate culture, EEBEE ESMBEMEIFMERLETR
health and safety, business ethics, corruption prevention and FEMEIGTER -
highlights of the Employee Handbook.
Labour Standards B4. LITZEXE
We safeguard the rights of our employees by strictly complying BB ETEAENBEEGIMEH - 12
with the requirements of the Labour Law of Hong Kong and AMTERRE KREKHE REIMRAS
employment regulations related to compensation, welfare, STHBOMERD 2 Ek - HEETHE
working hours, rest periods, anti-child labour and anti-force e RZZE-—NFHRFE  BMEERF
labour. In FY2019, we continue to provide medical insurance, FEACZEBEERHEERRR BREK
disability and invalidity coverage, maternity leave, Mandatory BERE  ER - REMEAES (RES®) G
Provident Fund (MPF) Scheme, incentive and bonus to all our 2 BEIRES o W - BPIBHEME—E
applicable full-time employees. In addition, we strive to provide BERBMERNBAEIIERRE -
an inclusive work environment free from harassment and
discrimination.
The Group strictly regulates the operation of our business REBBRREABRMOEBLE BERES
to ensure the compliance with local laws and regulations BRERRFESEMAME TEREENEEZRE
relating to labour standards during the course of operation. In HoRZE-NFUBFE  BEEHER
FY2019, there was no case of material non-compliance with B - CRPISBNRIE E) (57/20085% 5 %)
the Employment Ordinance, the Macau Labour Relation Law NRBEBERZEMNRFRERNILE T 58
(Decree-Law No.7/2008) and the relevant laws and regulations FIATHMRBERRARNE RERSEMN -
relating to preventing child or forced labour in Macau and Hong N RZZE-NFHRFEREF@AREE
Kong that have a significant impact. In addition, there was [RAB B AR KA IR X & KSRk #oA
no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non- s o
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in FY2019.
Supply Chain Management B5. EHER
As a responsible corporate citizen, one of our missions is to ER—ZBEANTCELR - BHMHEw
continuously integrate sustainability into our core business. In —RAGTHEERARMOZOER - TF
case we need to select our suppliers and contractors in the EEBREPTEERERERRABHRE -
process of our business operation, we do not just consider BT EEEBERAENLEREERE -
economical and commercial factors in the tendering processes NeETERBEIMIEEE - BEMHER L&
but also take into account environmental and social factors PRERSETHAEEREZEER R4 KE
including whether they comply with all the applicable laws and TAHBEELZZ AR EEREEHREN
regulations safeguard workers’ health and safety and mitigate FE I ANEEEEMEEB RN E
environmental impacts. In addition, the Group encourages all MEE MBI R HEBORAIFERE -
business partners to develop energy-saving and consumption-
reducing policies in order to work together in our pursuit of
sustainable development.
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To maintain a good corporate control and governance, the
Group has developed a series of management systems and
procedures to be aligned with the Corporate Governance
required by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Strict selection
procedures and management’s approval are required before
the confirmation of all supplier’'s contracts. Certain social
and environmental standards are also stated on the business
contracts signed between the suppliers and the Group including
() no compulsion to work through force or intimidation of
any form; (i) employment to be based solely on the ability to
perform the job and without any discrimination due to ethnicity,
gender, age, disability or marital statue; (iii) fair wages and all
other legally mandated benefits should be paid; (iv) provision of
a safe and hygienic working environment which complies with
local laws or practices; (v) integration of sustainability principles
into business decision; and (vi) anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering.

During FY2019, our major operation is located in Macau and
most of our suppliers are located in Macau as well.

Product Responsibility
Responsible Gaming

We recognize the importance of responsible gaming and we are
committed to supporting the Macau government’s responsible
gaming initiatives. As a result, we work closely with the Macau
Gaming Inspection and Coordination Bureau to formulate and
implement our best practices for promoting responsible gaming.
We promote responsible gaming in a variety of ways, including:

1. Channel is provided to problem gamblers, their families
or friends in need to contact different Problem Gambling
Prevention and Treatment Centres in Macau.

2. Providing our employees with training on responsible
gaming as part of their orientation and requiring
mandatory refresher training to be completed by our
employees periodically.

3. Implement well-established procedures to comply
with Macau Jackpot Technical Standards or relevant
legislation of the operation territory.
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The Group acts as a provider of money lending services
and has access to personal data of its customers, hence
ensuring privacy of its customers’ information is one of the
most important issues. In order to ensure compliance with the
requirement of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486,
Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has formulated a set of policies
regarding collection, retention, use, accessibility of personal
information.

The credit approval policy and process adopted by the Group
is designed for ensuring that the Group’s business operates
in accordance with the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163,
Laws of Hong Kong). The Group will regularly monitor, review
and when necessary, update the existing policy to ensure its
money lending business is strictly in compliance with the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486, Laws of Hong
Kong), the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong
Kong), the Commercial Code of Macau, the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance and other applicable laws and regulations that have
a significant impact relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters in regard to products and services
provided by the Group in Macau and Hong Kong in FY2019.

R -#HERERERE

AEBERBERGREHASEBIEATRS
WEAER  FitfEREEPERBILERTD
REENFRZ SEARFTA(EAEHR
(LR BB B LG F486F) R TE - &
SEOHE-—EFHKE  RE EARE
fig 8 N BB R -

REBRMNEEZIEE R RETRA
RERAEEHEBREGREAMEINGE
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RIEBE-NFUREE  TXEBH AT
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ERERMBAEEMNBFINEBRTEZE
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Anti-Corruption B7. RES
Insisting on the honesty, integrity and fairness in all aspects AREFTEMEBSHNSESTRERHNE K
of our business, and upholding a high standard of business EMAFENRA  RASEENHEBREY
ethics and prohibition of any forms of bribery and corrupt B EEAMEANBERNESTTA  A5ER
practices, the Group has developed a series of policies of BRI BB R IE D) (BB EHIF201F) HIE
anti-fraud and anti-bribery with reference to the Prevention of T—ZINRERFMRBEREE - ZFBERE
Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the laws of Hong Kong). ARASBHAMBEKE  TARMESEAT
These policies apply to all members of the Group, and we EXGEIERHETZSHERA -
also encourage all of our business partners to observe those
principles of the policies.
The Group conducts regularly systematic fraud risk NEBEMEPNRERFSCRFFRR G - X
assessments and continues to monitor the effectiveness ¥ E MDA £ A VB HA R A &R AR /) /Y
and deficiencies of its risk control and mitigation through BB AT BT o
collaboration with external parties.
The Group strictly regulates the operation of our business to REBBREBRMOES2E - UBERE
ensure the compliance with local laws and regulations relating BERBETETERERBESNE AR E
to anti-corruption during the course of operation. In FY2019, M- RZE-NFHBREE BETNEH
there was no case of any material non-compliance with the 2 B L B RS A1) ~ CRPT I 8) K2 J8 P
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, the Penal Code of Macau and NREBBBIHILEBR BR - RFFRARE
the relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, ZHEBEEREEMEEEAFENEATES
fraud and money laundering in Macau and Hong Kong that BMEG W RZZE-NFHBFE - #
have a significant impact. In addition, there was no report of fm R 3B [ MR B VA 1O 38 T #E BE B8 K S 3 sk
significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with HmwmeE -
the relevant laws and regulations in FY2019.
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Community Investment

We are committed to and take pride in contributing to the
community in a variety of forms. As a part of the community
that we cherish, the Group has put its best effort in helping
the local communities and people in needs in the society and
contributing to the well-being of a community beyond financial
support. We constantly encourage our employees to contribute
their skills and time to the community by volunteering our time
in the community development and outreach programs.

In the coming future, the Group will continue to attach great
importance to community services, and will encourage our
staff members to be actively engaged in voluntary services and
join hands together to disseminate the spirit of services in the
community where we all depend on.

B8. #HEKRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TR o
ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUCCESS DRAGON INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEERZRARATF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Success
Dragon International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
68 to 151, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income at fair value. This fair value measurement is
significant to our audit because its fair value loss of approximately
HK$54,157,000 recognised in other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 March 2019 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s fair value measurement involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
- Assessing the financial information of the investments;

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the
external valuer engaged by client;

- Obtaining the external valuation report and communicating
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to support
significant judgments and assumptions applied in the valuation
model;

— Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation
model to supporting evidence;

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement for equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income is
supported by the available evidence.
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LOAN RECEIVABLES

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of loan receivables for impairment.
This impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance
of loan receivables of approximately HK$26,664,000 as at 31 March
2019 is material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on estimates.

B M % B R

& W & =X
ZIE A B RN 21

EEEYEREZRNSEETRENR - ZRE
A ESECERMEBEZ  THRARZZE—A
F= A=+ —HZ#)26,664,000/% T & W & F 4 &4
HIRAUBHRERBEN - Lo BEBEZRE
S5 R FE R HI B R RHES o

Our audit procedures included, among others: EECEZEFRE(EFBRE) -

—  Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits with  — i BHEERAERARHEERBZE
the borrowers; i

—  Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history with ~— & BSEEEEFAZENBEERZZE
the borrowers; L

—  Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment; —  #E ESEZRERH

—  Assessing aging of the loan receivables; —  EERRERZEER:

—  Assessing creditworthiness of the borrowers; -  AEERAZEE:

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the borrowers; and — BEBRAZEBBEEREN &

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit risk — & BEERGAVBHREZEERRZ
in the consolidated financial statements. BEIBERN -

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for loan receivables is &E5R A SSEEKRERZRENAETEE

supported by the available evidence. B o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the information
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s
website at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/.

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P05988
Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K= FExT FE T
Revenue & 8 87,787 112,416
Cost of sales &R A (61,718) (85,280)
Gross profit EH 26,069 27136
Other gain or loss, net EMAREFRE 8 2,186 25,068
Selling and distribution costs HE R D KA (5,522) (4,687)
Administrative and other operating TREREREMEERX
expenses (56,284) (69,988)
Loss from operations REREEBZEER (33,551) (22,471)
Impairment loss of various assets SEEEREBE (4,147) (102,515)
Inventories written off VERSE ks - (347)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARZEE - (1,591)
Finance costs % E R 9 (1,200) (1,494)
Loss before tax MR B AT 1R (38,898) (128,418)
Income tax Fr iS5 10 - —
Loss for the year AEEER 11 (38,898) (128,418)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: HhZ2mE(EIE), UK :
Item that will not be reclassified to profit ~ # T & E# 7 HE 18 7
or loss: ZIHEEA -
Fair value changes of equity MAFEFEREHR
investments at fair value through BHAAEMEE
other comprehensive income Wz RAEE 2
N EEE) (54,157) —
Items that may be reclassified to profit —~ AJE#H B Z 875 2 18
or loss: A
Foreign currency translation reserve Bt B8 A &) 5 B B T
reclassified to profit or loss upon NEEBERZ
disposal of subsidiaries HNEE ¥R H 1B = 3,632
Exchange differences on translating REFIMNSEET
foreign operations EECZERER 974 408
Fair value changes of available-for- AHEEREZ
sale investments NEEEE - (105,451)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale ENoEEERZ
investments reclassified to profit or AP ERERE
loss &8 = 102,343
Total other comprehensive (loss)/ AEERBEZHMEZTE
income for the year, net of tax (BB WBesE (53,183) 932
Total comprehensive loss for the year A FE2HEEEEE (92,081) (127,486)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

RERERAEMCEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
—2-nF —TN%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b 3% FExT FE T
Loss for the year attributable to: DTATEMATFEERE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE =N (38,898) (131,612)
Non-controlling interests RS = 3,194
(38,898) (128,418)
Total comprehensive loss for DTATEEXRFERZEA
the year attributable to: EiEARE:
Owners of the Company VN/NCIE RN (92,081) (130,680)
Non-controlling interests IR S = 3,194
(92,081) (127,486)
Loss per share (HK cents per share) SREE(ERB) 14
Basic and diluted loss per share BREARR B EEE (1.74) (6.35)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M AR R R

As at 31 March 2019 R=-ZT—NF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE Y R 15 7,630 24,059
Goodwill (S 16 433 —
8,063 24,059
Current assets REBEE
Equity investments at fair value through LAAFEFEBHEH 17
other comprehensive income FFAEMEEKE 2
AT E - —
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 17 - 54157
Inventories FE 19 249 240
Trade receivables B 5 WA 20 58 -
Loan receivables & U B 3R 21 26,664 -
Deposits and other receivables & & & H A E WA 18 13,294 5,274
Bank and cash balances RITRR & 22 24,179 1,205
64,444 60,876
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HiheNHIBEREGTER 12,971 11,172
Amount due to a director BT ESEHRIA 25 159 -
Other loans HiER 24 18,380 -
31,510 11,172
Net current assets RBEEFEHE 32,934 49,704
Total assets less current liabilities MEERTHERE 40,997 73,763
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Director’s loan EEER 23 - 4,874
Other loan EMER 24 - 5,330
- 10,204
NET ASSETS EERE 40,997 63,559
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M AR R

As at 31 March 2019 R=-ZT—NF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FE T

Capital and reserves EARHEE
Share capital &N 26 23,663 20,737
Reserves 1 17,334 42,822
TOTAL EQUITY R 40,997 63,559

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 151 were BN FESEISIE ZRAMBHRENRZZ—NEFA
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on HAZ+ttRHEZEE=gHELREETE  WHTIE

27 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: EREREE:
Approved by: HUATESHE:
KWAN Chun Wai Roy DING Lei BIRE 2
Director Director EFE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAAERAEL
Foreign
Investment  currency Capital Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation translation redemption Accumulated controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total

RE NERE EARE
ks RBEE HXRE  EfRG i i RHEE a5 FERER a3t
HK§'000  HK$000 HKB000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  FER  TiEn TERL TEL TR TEr  TER TET  TER

(Note a)
(Ff3ta)

At 1 April 2017 NZE-tEmA-H 20,728 1,260,791 51,226 3108 (1,960) 1,190 (1,144,812) 190,271 (3,199 187,072
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AFE2ABELE - - - (3:108) 4,040 - (131612 (130,680) 3194 (127.486)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - - - - - - 5 5
Equity-settled share-based payments DEREZR RAERRH - - 3,737 - - - - 3,787 - 3737
Forfeited of share options B ERE - - (@411 - - - 33,580 (535) - (535)
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of EREETEBETLER

share options 9 533 (189) - - - - 353 - 353
Deemed capital contrioution arising from ~ FEENE# & B RRER

non-current interest-ree shareholder's ~ E4 2B (FEE

loan - - M3 - - - - M3 - 43
At 31 March 2018 KZE-\F=A=+-H 20,737 1,261,324 21,072 = 2,080 1,190  (1,242,844) 63,559 - 63,559
At 1 April 2018, as previously reported = E-\FMA—R

(R2H) 20737 1,261,324 21,072 - 2,080 1190 (1,242,844) 63,559 - 63,559

Effect of changes in accounting policies ~ B BEE B L (M H2)

(note 2) - - = (101,303) - - 101,308 - = =
At 1 April 2018, as restated RZE-\FEA-A

(7)) 20787 1,261,324 21,012 (101,303) 2,080 1,190 (1,141,541 63,559 - 63,559

Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEE2ABEAE = = - (54,57) 974 = (38,808)  (92,081) - (92,081)
Issue of shares on placement RERETRA 2,92 66,593 - - - - - 69,519 - 69,519
Forfeited of share options B R = - (8,618) - - - 8,618 - - -
At 31 March 2019 WZE-NFZR=1+-8 23,663 1,327,917 12,454 (155,460) 3,054 1,190  (1,171,821) 40,997 - 40,997
Notes: (=

(a) The capital reserve comprises (i) the fair value of the number of  (a) EXRFHERIENETARAEE  BEENEBERZER

unexercised share options granted to directors, employees and ITEBEREHE 2 AFELHEEMNE R BRE
consultant of the Company and (i) deemed capital contribution arising ERMEEZEIETE -

from non-current interest-free shareholder’s loan.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Cash flows from operating activities ZEXKFEHRERE
Loss before tax B 1 B 5 48 (38,898) (128,418)
Adjustments for: LTI SBEEDAE:
Depreciation of property, plant and Vs e REE
equipment e 11,836 14,490
Equity-settled share-based payments RS2’ HG
AWt iaft = 3,737
Finance costs B 7% & A 1,200 1,494
Fair value gain on director’s loan EEER 2 AFAERRE (587) (739)
Fair value loss on other loan EMERZAFEERE 1,136 863
Interest income FEM A - @)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AHHERERERBE
investments = 102,343
Impairment loss of deposits and other e Kk H MR R
receivables REEE - 172
Impairment loss of property, plant and M WBERRERE
equipment 548 4,147 -
Inventories written off 7 &M = 347
Reversal of equity-settled share-based BEAER N2
payment % 7 E 1 45 1 - (535)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR ZEIE - 1,591
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HE®%E - #EN
equipment HECEHE 576 32

Property, plant and equipment written PIE - MBS N AR E Y
off = 239

Waliver of other payables HibERRIERE - (3,572)
Operating cash flows before working LEEEHA 2
capital changes LEIH SR E (20,590) (7,954)
Change in inventories FEZE (9) (239)
Change in trade receivables H 5 e W FIE & g) (58) 696
Change in loan receivables JE U B TR B (11,760) -
Change in deposits and other Re & EMEIKKIE
receivables e=) 474 4,127
Change in other payables and accruals £ b & 5K 18 &
et ERE 3,062 (4,096)
Change in amount due to a director JER—BESHIBE 159 —
Net cash used in operating activities EEXKERACZRESEE (28,722) (7,466)
BERBEKRZERERQAE —S-N\E-NFEERS 73



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE_—Z

EHRERER

—NhE=ZA=1+—-HLFE

2019 2018
o LG
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FE T
Cash flows from investing activities REZFEFEREHRE
Purchase of property, plant and EEME  HER
equipment R E (1,886) (1,671)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B B A ) 34(a) (425) -
Receipts of cash from acquisition of WEHRB AR Z
subsidiaries BE& A 34(a) 72 —
Deposits for acquisition of property, WY - KR
plant and equipment REEZS (8,500) —
Interest received 2 & - 2
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries — H&HE R
P15 $UIB 1 403
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEmE - %%%%&
plant and equipment BB Z B RE 1,530 3,724
Net cash (used in)/generated from REFBH(ER) EE2
investing activities HEFHE (9,208) 2,458
Cash flows from financing activities BEZHFMERERE
Proceeds from issue of shares upon BRI IT R
exercise of share options & 9 Fr 15 5018 26 - 353
Net proceeds from issurance of shares B & B 317 Hx1
upon placement FTiS kI8 558 26 69,519 -
Interest paid EAFE (474) -
Repayment of other loan BEEEMER (11,918) (16,500)
Repayment of director’s loan EEEEER (1,000) —
Director’s loan raised FMEEZEEER 4,768 5,550
Shareholder’s loan raised FFEEzKREER - 2,600
Net cash generated from/(used in) BETBELE FEHZ
financing activities HEFHE 60,895 (7,997)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERREZEHIER
cash equivalents #in, L) FE 22,965 (13,005)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 7 ¢%}]Zﬁ$&
of year i—r@ 5B 1,205 14,201
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate %I & [ R & &) v 5/ £ 9 9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of REXRZHERREEE
year, represented by HE UTHEAERE
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & &8 24,179 1,205
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REHR
Success Dragon International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) BREEERERERAR(ARRADARER
was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company FRERRERBREFIMN L2 EREER
with limited liability under the Bermuda Companies Act. The ANA] e ARFFEM ISR 2 H ik % Clarendon
addresses of the registered office and principal place of House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
business of the Company are Clarendon House, 2 Church Bermuda ' MEr Z& XA ARBILARRE
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and Unit 403A, 4/F., Block B, B4-6%% 8 R K EBRE4EA03AE - RAFIRK
Sea View Estate, 4-6 Watson Road, North Point, Hong Kong, DREBBERIMBR AR (TR E
respectively. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock e
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and ARGl FEXEBRITEER MALEZ
the principal activities of the Group are provision of outsourced FEXEBRIURFIEHREFIERZMINZE
business process management for electronic gaming machines BREERRS RESRERERELEE
in Macau, provision of money lending services in Hong Kong AR RBES - ERAEMBARFZXEK
and information technology services. Further details of the ZHE—FFBFHNGEE B RRMEEIS -
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.
ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. RAHITIREBIZEBYE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA|
STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and RAFE AEBEECRMNBEDTBLTHAE
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) ((BEetMAg) BrEAEEBEATE
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public ZE-N\FOEA—ARBZEFFELARZ
Accountants (the “HKICPA?) that are relevant to its operations BN LB BBV BEREENTES
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 April 2018. MR EELER]) BEEVBRSERNBESR
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, BB REER - BB ENRRE - B
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations. The ATFrZI A - SR Z S ] RSB R BB
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result B 765 R 45 2E R I oK ¥ AN SR B A AN HA R K s 1
in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies, FEZEHBE AEBGEVBREZE
presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements WHARARM2®R 2 BEEKRENEF o
and amounts reported for the current year and prior years
except as stated below.
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e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

2.

76

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. RAAFIRLET2E BT
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING & ZE R (F)
STANDARDS (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments” ERMBREENFIR(ZZT—IF)
(€@ T A ]

Available-for-sale investments are now classified as equity Efl At ERELEANURATFEANEZR
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. HEHit AR a2 RAEE -
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 (2014) in accordance with the REBERBEEUBRELAESR(ZZ
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9 (2014) and resulted in —E)MHEBERXEATEYBREGE
changes in the consolidated amounts reported in the financial AR (ZE—F) WEHMERRAE2®
statements as follows: ZIRASHEERATES:

1 April 2018

—2-\%
mA—H
HK$°000
FHE T

Decrease in accumulated losses ZETEE R A 101,303
Increase in investment revaluation deficit 1§ & & B AL 18 0 (101,303)
The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that AEBVARERERBERERZFIT L
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has CEFTBAMEREER - REBBMIBFT
already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HZENTREE DBV RS ER 2
and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether 2. EHNELETHETII RSB R AN
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact BREEA OB EELEE RIBRK
on its results of operations and financial position. MIERERNTE -
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEEK

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investments which is carried at their fair values.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

KR AMBHREDBEBEET LSS RM
MBEEBMBRERER - EAEAREFTRAN
REERZ P LA REBRRRD 2 E
REERERE

REEMBHRRIREBEE LK TENRE
YRR A TFEAEZREEMRER - AEFEA
BEHBRABT(EITDESY > ME=HEF
SN FIAEBEY D AR EREAT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise their judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
these consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4
to these consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

3. FEEFEHEGEA)

RENEBBUBREEA 2 EHBREK
ARBETIERRRMGF  TERERE
EREFBRZBREFELHE - FREX
HE 2 BB ARG EMBREREEATE
ZBRBAGF AR A M RR M TARKEE -

BENGAMERRBERERAZEESTHE
AR o

RERE

REMBEBREEARALEMNBAREE
ZA=ZtT-HEZHBRER - WEBRREAR
SEEG cERE - EAKEAEBUSHA#
FHE2HEER MW UHENEBEYZ
BRZENZEZSEHE - AEBEZE
ZEBE - EARERAKRAEINER 2
EHBEAZEZBEROR A FHE
TR -AKENERHZEBIEN -

AP EI R AREEEREASGRE
MAOBEZBEREE NETHERTHESR
TR BERERERBBEABEREND
TTIEXEFETEZE -

MEARBEZEHEEE TAREERESGS
AR AR EHERIEZEREBURZEAANR -

HEMBAR (EEKEEHEE) 2 BREE()
HEREBZAFEMEMREZMERRME
48 & 7 2% 8 B (i) AN X B e A5 % T B8 A B
BEFENEEZHE ARG EZERFG
BEMMEERRBEINEREREZERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

3.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes
in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

3.

TEEBRGE)

RERE (8

SEANRRS  HEHREARERENSIEY
W MERSGENMEREELRRBE &
AIREBRBBEITMELE - HWBAF 2K
ROEVERIELES - UEREEAEE
Az st BUR—5

FERESIEAFFERIEARBRARA Z
MIE AR - FEREREREGSMBRR
KL ERBEHR IR ZD - FFERE
aRFARa REMEERER 2T RIFE
P B SR B AR R B A 2 A 90 B AN R 2 ) A
B RN S AR

i A R 18 K B At 2 W a5 B (B B R ED ) BR
BRARB A AR IEZERMIR - B L8
BRFEREREEBAEBRITA

ARBRMBRARZMAEEER 2 (XL
BEBKERGIEE) AR AE RS (H]
BBEBANFNZBEENETZIRS) - R
FERER RO ESERIE  ARBRZ
FHRARMBAREMER 228 - FER
oo AESBEMNHIMRRERTFEZ
MeTMEREEZERSTHER  LEBN
ARAREBA -
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received. |dentifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
in the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive
income (for example, equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income), the amount that was recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest were
disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in
the accounting policy below. Impairment losses of goodwill
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

3. FEEFEHEGEA)

EBEotREE

REBEHPRENEBRREBKEBZEA
R WEBERARRKBEMGTEE  ME
THEZTA FELARBERIKAREZRF
BEFtE - BARBZRARELE R ESRY
ZHEAERRAS - WETHBRREZA
BREENRBERZFRENKERAHRZA
FEFE-

Uit B8 B AN R AR R AL BB A R AT B E
ERBBEZRAPFEZEZEECERE - AR
ARG RAIEERAEZ A FFEBHK
BRAZEMNEZERGABEENERRER
BlEGZEERBE NS -

BROBBETZEBAHME  BEMR
MEARZ BRERWBEASM 2 A FEEH
E MALELEZEBNFEABRDEAER -
RFEGMNERBRAANGTERE -

HWEERBHBAR cREZEEZHERN
HEtp2EKREANER(MARFEFERR
FEHAEMEEREZBARE)  BIRE
fi 2 E IR s TR 2 & BB TR IRE R
ERMAZEREERER -

EEEEFETHENR  IRBFHNE
B RN A BE H R B S SRR A TTR
BAR - BEBEAARRREBETE -
BEREBE G EBIERT X BERM
MEAMMEE 25 EBIAER - BEZREE
BREABEEANER  AEERTTED - 5
HEAANS  mEE EERHRREL
BRMEmMER 2R ELEEM -

TA B B R R 2 FF 45 P A 2 1) 2 SR AR IR R
EHEZMBRRNKBER ZA&AIEER
BEZAFFELOE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEGHBERE)

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation HEEBmE

(a) Functional and presentation currency (a) WEERZEIEK
ltems included in the financial statements of each of AEBRERB2UBHREMHFBER
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of FEBEREEXBMEM s T B2
the primary economic environment in which the entity ERBECEB (e EBDEE - &7
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated AEHBEHRRNBITEY - MABTIIA
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, RAZMER B EH -
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial b) EEEHOBHREZZXZRAEE
statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into INEZXHGREAEAKRIERSERR
the functional currency on initial recognition using the TZEXMERNEER - LINER
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. BRUCZENEERABBERSHRESRR
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are BRACEZHE - WHRERES I
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each BarEaPRER -
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Translation on consolidation (c) HEKREZHRE
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The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

FEEBEB 2 EERMBEMR I ZY
BREEBMERNRARTR 225 EH
BREUATHRABRERARRZ 2 E
e

0] Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial 0] REPEMRRAREIN ZEER
position presented are translated at the date of that BEREEMBERAXRNEER
statement of financial position; me:

(if) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

(i) WXRFHERBERIEZT
HEXWIFEERIZERBIT
[ExsREFEZAEMEFTA
EZBERAT  UXEBEBARZE
AZEXKE) Rk

(i)  FPREREMES ZEXZEAIRN
SN BB ATER o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE—-Z—NF=ZA=1+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements

3. FEEFEHEGEA)
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ERERKAFAEERACHERER RS
VEEMHER) - IEEMEEREEAR
EEZHBEZERTER -

M B RREITERRAEGEAE
AFRANEREEMEYE HI LR
HRABRFABE 2 LLERFTE - TEFEM
T

Over the shorter of 20%-40% or over the remaining unexpired

terms of the leases

HEMRERE

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 19%-33%

Gl KERRDOERE

Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
wE

Electronic gaming machines and systems 20%

BETHEHRE RS

BREEKZERARAR

20%-40% K M A FI R IR UA BRI H R %)
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3.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

3.

TEEBRGE)

M- BERKREE

AEEBENEREHREHNEENHREME
AERERRITETE  TREERELH

= o

BREWE BEMRBZBEEHEMEN
BEFERAEEEERESECEH  anE

HEER -
HE
AEBEREBEA

W B E E A 28R Ak N m R
BEXAEEZAEARIIAKREHEE -HE
REEMGRAHBEARBRZEMNEBEE
MREHANE R AR B -

HH

FEEKRANMEEATER FEMETZIREE
AR o BORELAIE FIEETE - B MKk
EEMZRARERME BESTIRMAE
TERERXZEEFOAREE) D8
2 -AERFERARXRBBRANMGTE
BERE AR5 H ST E MG

st
B o
B

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/19



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially
recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction
costs except in the case of investments at fair value through
profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

— Financial assets at amortised cost; and

- Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

84

Financial assets (Continued)

(i

(i)
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Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade receivables, loan
receivables and deposits and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading as at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair
values recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the equity investment revaluation reserve.
On derecognition of an investment, the cumulative gains
or losses previously accumulated in the equity investment
revaluation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in profit
or loss, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of that financial instrument
(“lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents
the expected credit losses that result from default events on
that financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the
loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.
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3.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE—-Z—NF=ZA=1+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer with reference to the customary
business practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to
a customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the
laws that apply to that contract, a performance obligation can
be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEGHBERE)

88

(Continued)

Employee benefits EEEA

(a) Employee leave entitlements (a FEEEZBEZRHY
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service BEZEBLEHRERBENNE
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. EEZRER AEEEREERS
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual HARKIIHEECIEHE ZRBIIELA 2E
leave and long service leave as a result of services BEEHRBKRE Z(GtaEEL#
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting o
period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave BEZEBLEERANEEBFNABH
are not recognised until the time of leave. TERER ©

(b)  Pension obligations (b) RBUhZEMF
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a ceiling of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the government in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group
is required to contribute a specific percentage of the
payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement
scheme. No forfeited contributions may be used by the
employers to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Full-time employees in Macau are members of
government managed social benefits schemes operated
by the Macau SAR government. The Macau operations
are required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the
social benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the social benefits
schemes operated by the Macau SAR government is to
make the required contributions under the schemes. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to
reduce the existing level of contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non market based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non market based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair
value of the services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value
is measured at the date the Group receives the services and
is recognised as an expense.

For share options forfeited before the vesting date, the
attributable share option reserve would be credited to profit or
loss.
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3.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.
(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEK(E)
(Continued)
Related parties (Continued) BEAL(E)
(o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (o) WFRFETIEMGEH - Bl —EE 8
conditions applies: rEBEBEE

()  The entity and the Company are members of 0) ZEE &ZJX RIBR—%EEZK
the same group (which means that each parent, BAIEEAR - MEBAR KR
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the RIEB Tﬁﬁ%@) o
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —HAEEAZ BB HELQA
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a KEETEAR—EBE K
member of a group of which the other entity is a EZH@%%’RT%A%/ﬁﬁ i &%
member). B—EBANLEEZKE)-

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEBERHABERFE=ZHz2E8%
party. o

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —BEERBAXEX—ZF=FZr6ed
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. ¥ MBS BRAZFE=-F2H

NS

(vy  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v) ZEBRBDAASENEAEER
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an B v B ZEERMNME 2B
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself BeEasa - WAEEARSA]
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also REM@FE - BIET IR ZEETN
related to the Group. BEAREEFHE -

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEBRBZ@BAHALES
person identified in (a). S HERIEH] o

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) REOBFT#H 2 ALTHZER
over the entity or is a member of the key BEAVEN HEZEE(H
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ZEBIZORENZEEZEEA
of the entity). 8-

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (i) ZEBRBXEMBEEZEMKE
it is a part, provides key management personnel AIAADR S EFARREE
services to the Company or to a parent of the ZEBABRE -

Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources to and assess the performance of the Group’s various
lines of business in different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
goodwill, investments, inventories and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when material.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are
dealt with below).

(a) Revenue and cost of sales of electronic gaming
business

In applying critical judgements of accounting
presentation, the Directors consider that the Group
has exposure to the significant risks and rewards
associated with the rendering of services in which (i)
the Group has the primary responsibility for providing
the services to the customers; (i) the Group has latitude
in establishing prices and (i) the Group has to provide
minimum guarantee to casino management contractor.
Accordingly, the presentation of gross receipts from the
management of electronic gaming business of a casino is
accounted for as revenue, and the amounts allocated to
casino management contractor and the related tax and
other direct expenses is treated as cost of sales. The
Directors consider that this classification of revenue and
cost of sales provide a more relevant and appropriate
presentation of items in the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Equity pick up of entity of more than 20% equity
interest

Although the Group holds more than 20% of the voting
power of Primus Power Corporation (“Primus”), the Group
is unable to exercise significant influence over Primus
because the Group can only be entitled to appoint one
director out of the seven directors of Primus.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 4., ERHE KBRS (E)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty R THBARRZETERE

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key RFERRGFEERNRR - BAIEEHEE

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting HEERESER T MBFEREELE

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material AARZRREEESZHRE LG THBAR

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities T2 HMEBRIFERT R -

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Impairment loss recognised in respect of loan (a BEKREHRAEMEKZEERLR
receivables and other receivables EEB
The policy for provision of impairment loss of loan REBFHREWE R RIZ S A R H A0 FE
receivables and deposits and other receivables of the WHRIBREEEREORE IAERE
Group is determined by the management based on the [E 4R 3% mT W B 14 7 1 K2 BR B BREC D 4T BA
evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts LERENHEMET o sHAERKER
and management’s judgment. A considerable amount of RiEeAREMERFIBENRKZER
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation BENEEER R EHE - REHESER
of loan receivables and deposits and other receivables, ABEAEE RGBTSR S A& - R
including the current creditworthiness and the past HREHR  BRERRIEZS AR EME
collection history of each debtor. At the end of the 1 50 T8 A BR T 2 5B 9 Bl 49 426,664,000
reporting period, the carrying amounts of loan receivables BT (ZF —N\F : T) &13,294,000%
and deposits and other receivables were approximately TT(ZZ — \F : 5,274,000/ 7)(BE
HK$26,664,000 (2018: nil) and HK$13,294,000 Fr 25 (B & 18 934,468,000 7T (=
respectively (2018: HK$5,274,000) (net of accumulated T — J\4F : 34,468,000 7T)) ©
impairment losses of approximately HK$34,468,000
(2018: HK$34,468,000)).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 4., ERHE KBRS (E)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) RS THBARZERZEERFRE(E)

(b) Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, (b) BYHE HERREERYBEEE

plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Value-in-use calculations are used for assessing the
recoverable amount of these interests. These calculations
require use of judgments and estimates. Management
judgment is required for assessing impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related carrying value of interests may
not be recoverable; and (i) whether the carrying value
of the interests can be supported by the recoverable
amount. Changing the estimations used by management
in assessing impairment could materially affect the
recoverable amount used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s consolidated financial
position and results of operations. At the end of the
reporting period, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment was approximately HK$7,630,000 (2018:
approximately HK$24,059,000), net of accumulated
impairment losses of approximately HK$15,314,000 (2018:
approximately HK$15,275,000).

(c) Fair value of equity investments at fair value (c)
through other comprehensive income

In the absence of quoted market prices in an active
market, the directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s
investment in Primus, details of which are set out in note
17 to the financial statements, by considering information
from a variety of sources, including financial position
and historical financial result of Primus with reference to
the valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer, Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited.

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/19

(RIS PR N i kR 2
moRUgE - RIS mE - B kEREE
TRERS - FRAEBEFNEEZAR
FEZEERNTRESE - %55
HIBE AR E AR - BITRE
B ATERBEDHE  FEHTHA
FRCE M (V2R BEET WS
AT IEREERNS B EER
B:RiENEASEESETR
B4 - EREETBRENHRMA
T L EF AR YR E R H BT A A
WESEENEATE M AE
EMGEMBERARCEEEENY
2 ARERKR - WE - WERREN
BRTE £ 5849 /57,630,000 T (ZZ—N
F 924,059,000 7T) + B R
BB 415,314,000 T (-2 —/)\4F :
#915,275,0005 7T) °

URFPEFEBAREESAREMEEH
Wt RARER 2 FE

W EERME®RE ESREZH
& # (B FEPrimus i) B # AR 0 KB 1E
B WS REBYEELEME—
AFRpHEEMEEBEMBRAR
ER B (HE - E A %E B Primus &
BEHATFE EFBEHRIBHREN
FE17 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(d) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account of their estimated residual values.
The determination of the useful lives and residual values
involve management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimates, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate will
be changed in the future period.

4.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. tREARERE
The Group’s major financial instruments including equity AEEZFTERMTABFEARATENER
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, HEHFARME2EBNEMRARE - BUY
loan receivables, trade and other receivables, bank and cash ER -EBSNEMBERZE  BITRESE
balances, trade and other payables, director’s loan and other % BESREMEMNRIE ESERKEM
loan are disclosed in respective notes to the consolidated ER URAGREAMBEHREREE ZWFRIRK
financial statements. The risks associated with these financial Eof@EzZSenIAZEARBIETSER
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate (EERBLFERE) FEERBIER
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate BEeRER - R EZERR 2 HEHNT
these risks are set out below. The management manages and X o EREEBRRERZERR  UERE
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are RA M E e E 18 o
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
(a) Foreign currency risk (a) HHEER
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial SNER R R A AREEE T B8 82
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities denominated BN B ECBEEERS
in a currency that is not the functional currencies of the EMEERBE AKEBERIER
Group entities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency HONBRER UHREBETERHZSEY
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant JRE R SMNEE B o
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The foreign currency risk exposure of Macau and BFALESEBEREBRIMESE 2
Hong Kong entities arising from business transactions SNIS R B B0 o B - I A 2 51 B RK
were insignificant. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is EDHT °
presented.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s borrowings bear interests at fixed interest
rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate
risks.

The interest income is derived from the Group’s current
and short-term time deposits that carry interest at the
respective bank deposit rate of the banks located in
Macau and Hong Kong.

The Group’s bank deposits are short-term in nature and
the exposure of the interest rate risk is minimal and no
sensitivity to interest rate risk is presented.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
loan receivables, trade and other receivables and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income included in the statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

mEMBHRME

—NEFE=ZA=1T—-HLFE

5. TRl REEE)

(Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EERBK(E)

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances, The RIS lLiﬂtb?%vﬂé? MR HER

Group considers whether there has been a significant RE QAR RS HERBHNENR

increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing B HeREENEERRBRESRN

basis throughout each reporting period by comparing the EREPARZIFEEZERBIEN - K

risk of a default occurring as at the reporting date with EEERAGEERAEERIIFMNA

the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. EUHEEH  LHEHERTIER:

It considers available reasonable and supportive

forwarding-looking information. Especially the following

information is used:

—  internal credit rating; - ABEEFTR:

—  external credit rating (if available); - HNEEEFHR@A)

—  actual or expected significant adverse changes —  TEHIBHRERABTTEMREND
in business, financial or economic conditions that MEBREHHER - PBHLE
are expected to cause a significant change to the AR5 B B R X TR B B KT FI &
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations; &)

—  actual or expected significant changes in the - [EBRALEEENERNEHRE
operating results of the borrower; N

—  significant increases in credit risk on other financial - R—2EFANHEMESRITEE
instruments of the same borrower; kD

—  significant changes in the expected performance -  fBRAT Eﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁjﬂ’]iﬁ“
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes B BEERANNRMKRE
in the payment status of borrowers. & o

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor Th B RE KN FRRE A B B B30

is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual BRI EEERKR RGBS - EH

payment. A default on a financial asset is when the ?Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ’\m | H/TAQJ,HHE%GOEI N

counterparty fails to make contractual payments within NRIB ABEHMEEED -

60 days of when they fall due.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable
due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how the loan
loss provision is determined for each of the categories.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category and
adjusts for forward looking data.

5. TRl REEE)

(c)
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MIEEEREBRRE FERHEE
BIEEE  AEBZESENNBE
BEER AR ERELHE -

o

Category Definition Loss provision

Al E & EERE

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses
EE KED R &R 1218 A 78 Hi s 18

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk
TR EERREAZEEN

The group has concentration of credit risk as 39% and
99% of the total trade and loan receivables due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively for the year ended 31 March 2019. And the
Group has no concentration of credit risk for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management will closely
monitor the cash flows generated from operations and
the Group’s needs for different types of external financing
and will negotiate for proper facilities and consider proper
means of equity financing as appropriate.

(d)

Lifetime expected losses
T HITE BB 18

HE-Z-NF=A=+—HILFE -
AEBREBRAEEZTAEPEAKN
BEPHBEZEEETRRNEE SRR
AR R E KBTS R F39% K 99% °
(E-E-N\F=A=t+—HIFE -
AEETEEEETRR

RBES AR

REEBRBESRRTE AEEE
ERHEFRE MRS FEEANER
ERASRENRAEE 2 REEBIRM
B2 RRERSRENTEZKF -
EEEREVERKEERMELZ
BenERAEEYTRELIN R
BEXBE UIRBEEEEETERR
EERARE(WER) 2 B2 -
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s

remaining

contractual maturities for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the

reporting period.

5. TRl REEE)

(d #"RBESERRGE)

TERFIAKEESRABZHTAL
A - TRIDRBERABEBRNATEE
ARABEYRFPHPZAMRRES
MERHE -TEREBEMNERATRSE
ME - WABRREE

HERBEREPR N EMGRFTE -

31 March 2019

AR R 2

—ZE-hAF=A=+-H
More than  More than Total
On demand one year two years At
or within less than less than Undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows amount
REXRY HBBE-FE HEBEBWEE AR
R—FR MER EER RERE FEEH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TET FET TET
Other payables and accruals E it e 5008 & B3+ E 12,971 - - 12,971 12,971
Amount due to a director ~ JEffEEFE 159 - - 159 159
Other loans Hi &% 19,723 - - 19,723 18,380
32,853 = = 32,853 31,510
31 March 2018
—T-\F=ZR=1—H
More than More than TOtf"
On demand one year two years less il
or within less than than  Undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows amount
mERSE HA-FE HAMEAE AR
R—%R WER TER Beng T g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR FET TET TET AT
Other payables and accruals £ B 2 E & Bt B 1,172 - - 11,172 1,172
Director’s loan EZER - 5,550 - 5,550 4,874
Other loans HiER - 6,100 - 6,100 5,330
11,172 11,650 - 22,822 21,376
BEERERARAT —F-NEZ2-hAFfFE#E 103
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5.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
(e) Categories of financial instruments ) ®WMIAEDE
At 31 March
R=A=+-—8
2019 2018
—E-hE —ET—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE&xT F# T
Financial assets: EMEE:
Financial assets at amortised cost BHERRYENSRMEE
(including bank and cash balances) — (83E R 17 %35 & & 6%) 54,891 5,405
Equity investments at fair value UAFEFEBEEFHIA
through other comprehensive HEHte2mlazBAKRE
income - -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE = 54157
Financial liabilities: sEaesE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (X # R ANFIEH SR EE 31,510 21,376
(f)  Fair values f) 2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets rEEsRmEEReRABERGEEM
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated BIRARRMZGHEHEMEERE

5. TRl REEE)

statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

NFEEE -
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

() Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 March:

6.

AT E R

AFEZEERMH2EERGT ERYET
ZEFRXGHHEEEMER A EBEEEMR
SN2 ER - ATAFEFEREELAZA
FEEL  BFFEXFEMRRZEERMA
RaABELIA=ESH:

FE-RWABE: AKEREFE R AR
GHHEREERBERNERT S ZHRECK

wRE) -

E_RBARER REERABERRBEE
WA BREZBABRB(E-RABEORE
BRON) o

F-RBABE - BEXRAENTIEEH
A -

AEEZBRRERHRERFRIGRRE B
BRZEB AL ZE=AFH 2 EFE
AREH -

@ MR=ZA=t+—BZAVFEEHKSE:

Fair value measurements using: Total
FAUATHABEZAFENE: st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
£—& ER F=H/ =—T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FET FET
Recurring fair value KEMAFLETE:
measurements:
Equity investments at fair WAFEFERHR
value through other BEHAEMEE
comprehensive income Wz AT E
Private equity investments LERAKE = = - -
Total recurring fair value EEMERAFEFEZ
measurements =G = — - -
BEBEEZERAERAT —=-N"E2-rf5EHE 105
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. NFEFE(E)
(Continued)
(@  (Continued) (@) (&)
Fair value measurements using: Total
ERARTEABE A FESS: #at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
F—& F_M F=H —ZE—)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TR THET
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Recurring fair value
measurements:

Available-for-sale investments A] {ft H & & &
Private equity investments LERAKRE

Total recurring fair value KEEANFETE
measurements 48 =7

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no
transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2018: nil). The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfer between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The Group’s finance team are responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation process and
results are held between the financial controller and the
board (“Board”) of directors of the Company (“Directors”)
at least twice a year.

The level 3 fair value measurements were valued at their
fair values at 31 March 2019. As at the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018, the fair values were valued by
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer which holds
a recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in valuation.

— 54,157 54,157

- 54,157 54,157

(ZE-E-NAF=ZRA=t—HILFE -
BE—RREZRELEEITERE - L
BARBEE=R(ZZT-N\F £)-
EEBZBRASATEERBNRE
HRBELERERER -

A 9 B ) B 75 B 2 A 7 R AR E A
FEAEREHEIATENE 0
E-HATEHE - B HEERARD
AEE(EENE(EERNELEF
R Bh 1t (8B A2 T 5 SR HE 175 4 o

FEZRATFEFEN=ZE—NEF=ZA=
+—BAEBEAFEETHE #HE-Z
—NER=ZT-—N\F=-ZA=1+—HBLHF
EREEDBEE-AFEHEHGEE
MEEBEBMAERABETHGE  ZA
BABUEXAERGMEM BFEE
RAMERAEEXEER K ABIBHE
KB o
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. AFEFTE(E)
(Continued)
(o)  Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on b) WREF=ZLEAFEFTENEELER:
level 3:

Equity investments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

income
UATEFEEH
BEAEMEE
Wz BRAERE
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FERT
At the beginning of year F ) 54,157
Total gains or losses recognised in other REM 2= ER
comprehensive income W s sk B 1B B %8 (54,157)
At end of reporting period WEBHR =
Available-for-sale
investments
b ERE
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
T T
At the beginning of year F 4 158,568
Total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss* A48 75 i 52 HY Uk 25 3%
Bt
— impairment loss of available-for-sale — AHEEREREBRE
investments (102,343)
— exchange difference — EHE# 1,040
Total gains or losses recognised in other REMEEWR SRR
comprehensive income Wk i 4258 (3,108)
At end of reporting period WEHR 54,157
® Include gains or losses for assets held at the #EFARHEHRKRIEFZ
end of reporting period BE W= EE (101,303)
The total gains or losses recognised in other REMEEREERA IR EZNBEER
comprehensive income are presented in fair value HEIAGeEakEMETEKRER
changes of equity investments at fair value through other NUAAFEFEBEEEHTAEME
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of HWm 2 BRABREZATFEEZS -

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

BEEREEERAD —2-\Z-rssEHs 107
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6.

—NhE=ZA=1+—-HLFE

FAIR VALU)E MEASUREMENTS

(©

(Continued
Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group ©0 RZA=Z=+—HASEMEABANMGEE
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value BrFRATEFEMARBOMGERN
measurements at 31 March: K A B A R
Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value FZHAFE d‘iﬁﬁ %ﬁﬁ HEZEAA
measurements are mainly: HRg A ASBETFrEL:
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation  Unobservable increase of Fair value
Description technique inputs Range inputs NFEE
A BRIE M 2019
#15 HERT FUIEZRBAHE gE HAFENZE ZE-NEF
HK$’000
TET
Equity investments at  Asset Financial position Net liabilities of Decrease
fair value through approach approximately United
other comprehensive State Dollar (*USD”)
income 6.38 million as at
31 March 2019
UNRATEFEEHEZY BEX BT IROR RZT-NE=HA= G
STAEMEEREZ T-HZBEFER
PR A1 & #6.38E EE T
(Ev)
Historical financial Net loss for the Decrease
result years ended 31
December 2016,
2017 and 2018
of approximately
USD11.54 million,
USD14.36 million
and USD13.95
million
BREMBEE EZT-REF G
—ELFR
—Z-N\E+ZA
=t—HILFEZ
ERFEINA
HNs4EBEET
1436BEE TR
13.95B X -
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase Fair value
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs NEE
@A BB 2018
g mERN  TAUBERE AR HE HLATEHNTE —\F
HK$'000
FET
Available-for-sale Market Forward price-to- 1.2-8.4 Increase
investments approach sales multiple
At HERE 5% RET X =il
Discount of lack of 30% Decrease
marketability
BRemERBIEZ o
mErE 54,157
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HE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HILFE  4E
RS- \FRANMSEEFTAE
EF WhHBEREGMERRT I EESSA
Primus #8 AR 5% 69 2 B 9 & 38 8% 0 TR iR
Z Primus /) ] {5 %8 &= HA B 75 78081 -

REEBNME  AERERLEDHBREEFZ

— RERFMETEE
5 R R

7

- BRERES

— REERABERE

— REBRERER
%

REEZ A 28 0 G0 1E AR 2 mm MR

I % 18 7% B R AR I

B i S E E I o

REBEE-_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEEE K
SEEHERRKEMEBRABBY IR
RHEAMBERBZEE -

BRELADHZERZRAT -

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. AFEEFTE(E)
(Continued)
(¢)  (Continued) (© (%)
For the year ended 31 March 2019, the valuation technique has
been changed from market approach adopted in 2018 to asset
approach, as no suitable data from comparables with similar
status of Primus and lack of reliable long-term financing forecast
from Primus can be adopted in the valuation process.
aN PN
SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. DHER
For management purpose, the Group’s operating segments and
their principal activities are as follows: FEFHMT:
Outsourced — Provision of services on NI TS A2
business process management of electronic =g
management gaming equipment in Macau
Packaging products — Trading of packaging products PREMER
business
Information — Provision of information A REHOR S
technology services technology services
Money lending — Provision of money lending BB R
services services in Hong Kong
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed Zﬁﬁfﬂ%%ﬁ@ﬁ ’
separately because each business requires different technology M Ke 7 45 HE R R
and marketing strategies.
The operation of packaging products business and information
technology services to Vietham pari-mutuel sector were
disposed from the Group during the year ended 31 March
2018.
Information regarding the above segment is reported below.
BEEEBERERAA

ZE-NE-NAEFERE
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEHERE)

(a) Segment revenue and results (a) oMWURERESE
TRAEEREAER, B2 AEE W=

KEDMW:

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 March

110

BEZR=T-BL%E
Outsourced business  Packaging products  Information technology Money lending
process management business services services Total
PEBREER BREREH EANE RS HERS @
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hE T\ ZE-AE 3\ ZE-AE “E-\F ZE-NE —T-\f ZB-AE —T)\f
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TEn Thr TET ThL TET ThEL TEn Thr TET ThL
REVENUE: g
Revenue from external ~ RENFEFZ
customers s 86,673 107014 = 5,402 58 - 1,056 - 87,787 112416
Segment (loss)/profi B(EE) /BN (19,528) (11,622 - (@13 (279) 2.756) 243 - (19,564) (15291
Interest income HEBA - 2
Unallocated income FARBA 442 21,978
Unallocated corporate FARCERT
expenses (18,576) (31,270)
Impairment loss of HEHERE
avallable-for-sale REFR
investments = (102,343)
Finance costs BB A (1,200) (1,494)
Loss before tax BRENEE (38,898) (128,418
There are no sales between the reportable segments for BEZZ-—NFRZE—/N\F=A=1
both years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. —HIEMEFEE - 7] 2 %5 =6 HE I &
HE -
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are 2R, TS RRELEB ]
the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment B DIUBE), BN AEEES
(loss)/profit represents the (loss)/profit of each segment Bz (B, = - WRBIRA - BRTS
without allocation of interest income, refund from HEMER - HMENFKIBR#E - Al

service provider, waiver of other payables, impairment
loss of available-for-sale investments, finance costs and
unallocated income and expenses. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

HEREBERBERE  MBRENRKRD

RWABRSZ A TOR - E2ALE

lI%ﬁé—iL?)& REMMME 2T A
DERERNFEDBERR
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= > AN =
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (b) PHBEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and TRAASEZAZFRDFHE D E
liabilities by reportable segment: EREESN:
At 31 March
R=A=t-H
Outsourced business  Packaging products  Information technology Money lending
process management business services services Total
PEBREER BREREH EANE RS HERS @
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-NE “E-\§ ZB-pf T\ ZB-AE -“EF-\F ZB-pF —T-/\f ZB-NEF )%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TEn Thr TET ThL TET ThEL TER Thr TET ThL
ASSETS: BE:
Segment assets PHEE 13,023 28,062 - - 58 - 29382 - 42463 28062
Bank and cash balances  HTRELEH 24,179 1,205
Available-for-sale IHHERE
investments = 54,157
Unallocated corporate FARCEEE
assets 5,865 1,511
Total assets EEEE 72,507 84935
LIABILITIES: &:
Segment liabilities AHEE 7,683 3,728 = - 85 - 86 - 7,854 3728
Other loans B &R 18,380 5,330
Director's loan BEEN - 4,874
Unallocated corporate ~~ RAEL£8MH
liabilities 5,276 7444
Total liabilities BELE 31,510 21,376
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances RERDBRRE D BEERD M
and allocating resources between segments: =i
all assets are allocated to reportable segments — BRE|TRBESEH  UATER
other than bank and cash balances, equity s BEEFTAHEME2EBED

investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income/available-for-sale
investments and unallocated corporate assets; and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than director’s loan, other loans and
unallocated corporate liabilities.

BREEKZERARAR

BARIRE AIHEERERRD
REREEN  MAEEENRE

AE2® DA

- KBREFER-
eERBEHN

B hvd
E=ila =i

ZE-NE-NAEFERE

&

HER KRB
FEREBELEER
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

112 Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/19

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location is detailed below:

7.

DEER (&)
(c) HEESR

AEBZEBREHHBRER R
KHE -

AEBZWIBEMEE D ZREINIEE
B2 asF51mT

Revenue by geographical market B E T E 52 W
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Macau B P 86,673 107,014
United Kingdom 2 - 1,390
United Arab Emirates P AR B S 2 & B = 1,158
United States of America EFBRER - 1,129
Italy BEARA = 457
Hong Kong B 1,056 173
South Africa B - 52
Monaco FEE 4 =F - 59
Other countries T 58 984
87,787 112,416

No revenue from customer (2018: nil) contributing over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is
based on the location of the customers.

MERAER(ZT—N\F: 8) 2K
HAREE AU ZZAI0% A £ o

EHMEERE  WEDREPHAE

wE D -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oHERE)
(c) Geographical information (Continued) (c) HEER(H&)
The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location AEBZWEBNBES D ZIERBEE
are detailed below: E IR NE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong B 2,455 495
Macau R P 5,580 23,564
The PRC i 28 —
8,063 24,059
(d) Other segment information d EHittpsHER

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets:

FHED RSN AR

AZ TR

For the year ended 31 March

PaNEvs

o EE ER A

HEZR=t-BLEE
Outsourced business  Packaging products  Information technology Money lending
process management business services services Unallocated Consolidated total
PHEHREER BEEREH FERET L HERE AR GaaE
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Z8-0F ZE-N\E ZB-nf C3-0F ZB-AF TN Z3-RF ZT-0F ZE-AE CE-NF ZE-AF CRNE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000 — HK$'000  HKS000
Tér ThEr TEx TEr  TEn TEx  TEx TEr  TEx  TEr  TEx  TiEx
Addiion to property, plant ~ FENE - BER
and equipment BY:] 190 1,363 = - = - 1,604 - 92 506 1,886 1,869
Depreciation of property, 9% - BERRE
plant and equipment g 11,695 13,577 = 1 = 718 27 - 114 134 11,836 14,490
Impairment loss of avalable- A HEREHE
for-sale investments BB = - = - = - = - - 102343 - 102343
Impairment loss of deposits %4 R £ EUZE
and other receivables REBE = - = 34 - 138 - - - - - 1
Impairment loss of property, 1% BERREZ
plant and equipment HEBE 447 - - - - - - - - - 4,47 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of ~ HENE  BER
property, plant and RELEE/
equipment (%) 576 2 - 38 - (87) - - - 349 576 P
Property, plant and n% EERRE
equipment written off e = - = - = - = - = 239 = 239
Inventories written off FEHE - 347 - - - - - - - - - 347

BREEKZERARAR

ZE-NE-NAEFERE

113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

8. REVENUE AND OTHER GAIN OR LOSS, 8. W&k HMEES FHE
NET

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other gain or loss for AEBZAFERZ M EMABESTHOT
the year is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHE T
Revenue from contracts with HEFZEHWE
customers
Provision of services on management of PRFIRRHEEEEFER
electronic gaming equipment in Macau BB R 86,673 107,014
Trading of packaging products BEERES = 5,402
Provision of information technology services 12t & s &l £ iR 7% 58 —
86,731 112,416
Revenue from other source: Hth Ut 25 2R ¢
Provision of money lending services in REBRHRERS
Hong Kong 1,056 —
87,787 112,416
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REVENUE AND OTHER GAIN OR LOSS, 8.

NET (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

W s B Ho e B AR ()

mEPZEHKEZHFD

Outsourced
business Packaging Information
process products technology
management business services Total
ShH K BEEEM EARBE
REEE ES 3 PR % et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Year ended 31 March BE-Z—N&§
2019: =A=+-8
LFE:
Timing of revenue W 25 T R B R
recognition
— At a point in time — RE R = - 58 58
— Overtime — BER A 86,673 = = 86,673
86,673 = 58 86,731
Year ended 31 March HE-_Z—N\F
2018: =A=+—8H
IEFE -
Timing of revenue U 25 1 52 B P
recognition
— At a point in time — RE R — 5,402 — 5,402
— Overtime — BERFRE 107,014 — — 107,014
107,014 5,402 — 112,416
BEERERARAR —F-NEZ-LAF5E#E 115
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8.

116

REVENUE AND OTHER GAIN OR LOSS,
NET (Continued)

Provision of services on management of electronic
gaming equipment in Macau

The Group provides electronic gaming equipment management
services to the customers. Electronic gaming equipment
management services income is recognised when the electronic
gaming equipment management services are rendered and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the service.

Trading of packaging products

The Group sells packaging products to the customers. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to a customer, there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products and the customer has obtained
legal titles to the products.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to
the customers as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due. Deposits received from customers
are recognised as contract liabilities.

8.

W s B Ho e B AR ()

REAMRUEFEERBEEERSE

AEBEREFPRHEETFHEYREBEERT -
BEFEYREEERBURAREHREFEY
REEEREFAR Y EAERTERPE
XREOARBITEERER -

BEERES

AEERNEFPHERRER HEREMZ
IHRERTEFAERRNTEFPKYL
Bt 2EPREYEMNRETEER
BEPEBEMEEMAR)KER -

BURFERERINTEPHER - B
REAEERNRIBAMEOERBEMR
EBRAEGRS - BEEPUBZEEHRRA
A -
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REVENUE AND OTHER GAIN OR LOSS, 8.

NET (Continued)

Provision of information technology services

The Group provides
the customers.

information technology services to
Information technology services income is

recognised when the information technology services are
rendered and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect

the customer’s acceptance of the service.

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

W s B Ho e B AR ()

RUEMPNRRE

AEERFEFPREHEAMZRYE - B
AR 755 M A TR B R R IR 7 B A B I 4R
MR ER ERPERR R RETE R E

=7
po ©

2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHE T
Other gain or loss, net: HtEEFHE:
Management fee income EEBUA 2,320 3,120
Loss on disposal of property, plant and MEWE - HER
equipment RE2EBE (576) (32)
Interest income on bank deposits RITHF A B A = 2
Refund from service provider (Note) KBRS ER 2R
(fF3E) = 17,871
Waiver of other payables Hib B FIER R - 3,572
Sundry income FMIEWA 442 535
2,186 25,068

Note: The Group had paid for consultancy service fee to a consultant
of information technology services segment during the year
ended 31 March 2016. Reference to revocation of business
consultancy agreement, the consultant agreed to refund the
consultancy service fee to the Group during the year ended 31

M AEERBE—T-—R"F=ZA=1t—AL#F
B A E RS 0 70 B AT A AR
B8 ZIRMEBHBAGEORE  BHE
RBE-ZE-NFZA=1T-BILFERE
AMASEREFXAREE

March 2018.

FINANCE COSTS 9. B
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHERT F# T
Interest on other loans HERZFE 474 —
Imputed interest on other loans HERZ2R2EHNB 549 1,388
Imputed interest on director’s loan EEERZEEFE 177 106
1,200 1,494
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e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

10.

118

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profits for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at a progressive rate
from 9% to 12% on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. No provision for Macau Complementary Tax is required
as the Company’s subsidiary in Macau incurred tax losses for
the year. Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is 25%
for both years.

Tax arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The reconciliation between the income tax for the year and the
loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is
as follows:

0. FREH

HRAEERBE-Z-NFRZZ-N\F
AT RLEFEYEERBTGEN - &
BIELERMEHERE -

R PP 15 7 8 B 1R AN 6 R Ak AT B SR8 1) A
REMFI%RE2%E - HRARR] 2R
MBARRAFEELRERBE  HEAE
HORFIFFIS AT B - RETBECEME
BA(REMBREADREEMEHAE R
Gf > RARMIRAPEZHEBARZHER
% R E S E 15 /525% ©

REMBDERBREE 2RBTHIZEBEER

ZHRITREFE -

A4 [ P18 T4 B0 4 AT 5 1B TR A B 7 18 B
Bisk 2 SHEEINT

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FH T
Loss before tax B 7 B BT 18 (38,898) (128,418)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 127N BT 15 B B % 16.5%
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) HE2HIA
(ZZ—N\F :16.5%) (6,418) (21,189)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMEIEHE KL 2B
operating in other jurisdictions REITRBERZZE 698 1,003
Tax effect of income not taxable BERMBAZHEBEZE (5) (3,715)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR AST BT E 2,579 20,931
Tax effect of taxes losses not recognised A fE 32 i 18 &5 18 2 Fi 75 50 & 3,214 4,724
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRI AER 2HIEEIE
recognised (68) (1,754)

Income tax for the year REEZREH

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$24,373,000 (2018: HK$16,864,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit stream.

RIREER - AEE A A AR E 8K 505 F
2 ARE AT IAE 24,373,000 L (ZF— N
£ 116,864,000/ 7T) © FH AR 2K K SRR 2
TR TR MU EERECEHIEEE -
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging:

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

1. XFEER

AEBAFEBECHBTIIRE:

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZTE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiE T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFENRAE - 4,840
Depreciation of property, plant and M WERREITE
equipment 11,836 14,490
Property, plant and equipment written off %) 3 + 1% 25 K 3% & fifl 5 = 239
Operating lease rentals in respect of land T REFZK&LHEH S
and buildings 1,669 3,535
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 256 B 2 950 950
Staff costs (including Directors’ BTN (BIEES
remuneration — note 12): M — KYEE12) ¢
Salaries, allowances and other Fre RUEREMEYD
benefits in kind 1@ K 15,839 25,677
Equity-settled share-based payment PSS ZBHD
Bt = 3,737
Pension scheme contributions RINEFTEIME R 391 375
Total staff costs BT AR 16,230 29,789
Inventories written off LERSE i = 347
Impairment loss of various assets: NTEBEERMBEEISE:
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE - 102,343
Property, plant and equipment M - RS R 4,147 -
Deposit and other receivables & & H M pE W R E = 172
4,147 102,515
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WEREREZ
equipment [=gi=! 576 32
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e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments

(a) EEBS

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-hE=A=t-HLEE

12. EEREEREHEEZHE

Salaries, Equity-
allowances Retirement settled
and other Discretionary benefits share-based Total
Fees benefits bonus scheme payment emoluments
e RER NEREXZ
ne Ht A MERA BRARAFE ROERGH Weait
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
i3 TET TERT TERT TET TERT TET
Executive directors: #TEE:
Mr. Ding Lei Taxk (i) = 240 = = = 240
Mr. Kwan Chun Wai ~ BRZ %4 (i)
Roy = 1,162 64 13 = 1,239
Mr. Tan Teng Hong ~ BREZEE4E (i = 124 - 5 - 129
Independent BYFHTES:
non-executive
directors:
Mr. Au Kin Wah BfgELs (iv) 121 = = = = 121
Mr. Chi Dong Eun HRREAE v 144 = = = - 144
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BB LS (vi) 60 = = = - 60
Mr. Deng Yougao HEREE (vil) 240 = = = - 240
Ms. Wong Chi Yan ELBLT (vilf) 212 = = = = 212
Mr. Yong Peng Tak B FELE (ix) 85 = = = - 85
862 1,526 64 18 = 2,470
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. EERTEREFEEZHE
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) E=MS(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T-NFZA=T-HLEE

Salaries, Equity-
allowances Retirement settled

and other Discretionary benefits  share-based Total

Fees benefits bonus scheme payment emoluments
R XN
e 2 BRAEMN ZROER

we REMEN BEEL BE B BessE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THET TET THET TET THET TET

Executive HITEE:

directors:
Mr. Goh Hoon RIWEE )

Leum - 1,990 - - - 1,990
Mr. Jiang Dan EREE () - 578 - - - ore
Ms. Li Xue Hua Etat (xi) - 643 - - - 643
Mr. Tan Teng BEE ks )

Hong - 384 - 16 3,737 4137

Independent BUHGTES:
non-executive

directors:
Mr. Chung Yuk BREBEAE (vi)

Lun %8 - - - - 98
Mr. Chi Dong Eun St 3R IE L4 ) 79 - - - - 79
Mr. Er Kwong Wah Rt E%4E (i) 91 - - - - 91
Mr. Jia Li Min ERREE (xiv) 22 - - - - 22
Mr. Yong Peng Tek 15 FE £ & (ix) 170 - - - - 170
Mr. Zheng Jian BiERLs (xv)

Peng 78 - - - - 78

538 3,595 - 16 3,737 7,886
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e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE_—Z

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(il

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(i)

(xiv)

(xv)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Appointed as an executive director on 1 April 2018.

Appointed as an executive director on 3 July 2018.

Appointed as an executive director on 7 June 2017 and
resigned on 3 July 2018.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
30 September 2018.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
14 September 2017.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
7 June 2017 and resigned on 30 September 2018.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
1 April 2018.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
14 May 2018.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
8 April 2011 and resigned on 30 September 2018.

Appointed as an executive director on 6 July 2015 and
resigned on 3 January 2018.

Appointed as an executive director on 24 March 2017 and
resigned on 7 June 2017.

Appointed as an executive director on 3 March 2017 and
resigned on 7 June 2017.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
2 July 2014 and reigned on 14 September 2017.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director
on 23 March 2017 and resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 7 June 2017.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director
on 29 August 2016 and retired as an independent
non-executive director on 14 September 2017.

—NhE=ZA=1+—-HLFE

12. EEREEREHEEZHE
(%)

(@ E=M (&)

M aE

(i) —N\FOA-HEZER/NT

n=
£
(ii) RZZE—N\FE+LA=ZREZTAEHNT
EBHo
i tENALBEE T BT
£
n=

(il —=
BFEVYR_ZF-—N\FLA=ZAFT -

(iv) —N\FNLA=Z+HEZTAESE
#ﬂﬁiio
) RZZE—+HFNATHBERZEERSE
SIEBHITEE -
vy RZE—+tFALAEZEABEL
FHMITEEIR-_Z—\EFELA=T
ABHE -
iy RZZE-NFUNA-—BHEZTABI

FHITES -

(i) RZZT-N\FRAT+HAEZTAESE
SIEHITESE -

ixy RZE——FHOANBEZEARABEL
EHMTEEYR T N\FALA=T
HEHE -

(x) RIZ-—RELARNBEZERNT
BRINR_ZT—/\F-A=BFE -

x)y RZE—LEF=A-+HAEZEA
iﬂTT§$IR\—§ +tFRNALHE
F -

i)y R-BE—tE=ZA=-HEZITAEHIT

%%ﬁ%:%—tﬁﬁﬁtaﬁgo

xiiy RZE—OEF+AZAEZETABEL
FHTEEI RN T —tFNLATT
ABHE -

xivy RZE—+F=A=-+=BEZTA

ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%%IRfT tFRA
THBEBILIENTES -

RZZE-RENAZTNLBEEZER
BUFMITESRYIRN T —LFNA
THREREBIIERITES -
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments

One (2018: three) of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group were Directors whose emoluments are set
out in the above. For the year ended 31 March 2019,
the remaining four (2018: two) senior management’s
emoluments of the Group were presented below.

12. EEREEREHEEZHE
(%)

b) EREEEMS

AEBLEESHFALTRE—R(ZE
—N\EF:ZR)EF HMEFIHHT
REX AREBBE—T-NAF=ZA=
T-BLEFEEHRUE(ZT-N\F:
MB)BBRERB LM 25/MT -

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE&xT FET

Salaries, allowances and other He FZUEEMEYEF
benefits in kind 1,899 2,445

Retirement benefits scheme RARAE T FHE

contributions = 20
1,899 2,465

The emoluments fell within the following band:

B F TS E :

Number of individuals

AH
2019 2018
—E2-0EF —T-N\%F
HK$Nil to 1,000,000 Z 8 7T 21,000,000 7T 4 1
HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,600,0017% 7T 2,000,000/ 7T - 1
4 2

BREEKZERARAR
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e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors
or the five highest paid individual as compensation of
loss of office for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$225,000). And no emoluments have been paid by the
Group to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group during
the two years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

13. DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for each of the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

14. LOSS PER SHARE

124

(a)

(b)

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/19

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss of
approximately HK$38,898,000 (2018: HK$131,612,000)
for the year attributable to owners of the Company and
the weighted average number of 2,241,225,835 (2018:
2,073,608,876) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share is presented for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 as the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options would be anti-
dilutive.

12. EEREEREHEEZHE

13.

14.

(%)

(c)

HE-Z-NF=A=+—-HILFE -
AEEHBEBEAEEAIEEHESR
SNEMME - (ERBERR ZFE (=
T — )\ : 225,000/ 7T) EREEZ
E-NER-_FT-N\F=ZA=+—HBL
MEFE AEEREAEFTLOSE
RRFMALXNEMMS  ERK
FMEAEEINMBERZ RS -

=)

HE - NWEFr-_FE—\F=ZA=+—H
IHFESF EZVEEZZRNTEMAEKRE -

BRERE

(a)

(b)

BREFTER

KARBBEAEGRESRERERB
BEBEARBAIBEBEABRGBAFED
18 #938,898,000/ o (= & — )\ F:
131,612,000/8 70) * LA R ARFE B 317
T IR 2 b0 #E 735 #h2,241,225,835/%
(ZZ— )\ :2,073,608,8760% ) 5+ & -

BREEER

HE-_Z-AER-_Z—-N\F=A=+
—HIEFE ARTERQRMRITE
CHEBREARBEEYE BIUEZT
GREEEE -
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. W% - HBERRE

Electronic
gaming
Leasehold  Furniture and Office Plant and Motor  machines and
improvements fixtures equipment machinery vehicles systems Total
ETHYHR
HENEEE  GRAREE  WOERE  BERRE RE E i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEL ThL TR THET ThET TiER Tin
COST: AR :
At 1 April 2017 R-F-+EMA-H 9,683 4,152 15,580 95,986 892 79,625 205,918
Exchange realignment ERAE 9 (15) (144) - - (795) (963)
Additions HE 503 - 8 - - 1,358 1,869
Disposals hE (209) 26) (743) (4,591) (704) (154) (6427)
Written off during the year FRHE (708) - (1) (330) - - (1,047)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR (5.114) (1,566 219 (01,065) - - (07,964)
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-\E=A=1-H
1 April 2018 k=E-\EMA-A 4,148 2,545 14,471 = 188 80,034 101,386
Exchange realignment EHAE (10) (16) (173) = = (824) (1,023)
Additions RE 68 163 1,655 = - - 1,886
Disposals e - (211) (193) - = (10,431) (10,835)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=1-H 4,206 2,481 15,760 = 188 68,779 91,414
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND E:t & R (B
IMPAIRMENT LOSS:
At 1 April 2017 R-F-+EMA-A 9,146 4,116 3,910 91,876 382 55,258 164,683
Exchange realignment ELAR 8 (15) (26) - - (552) (601)
Provided during the year FREE 153 28 2,297 1,066 23 10923 14,490
Eliminated on disposals e (174) (19) (510) (1,547) (229) - (2473
Eliminated on written off MR (479) - (6) (330) - - (808)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAR (5,14) (1,566) (219) (91,065) - - (97.964)
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-\$=A=+-H
1 April 2018 k=F-\ENA-H 3,531 2,544 5,446 - 182 65,624 71,327
Exchange realignment EHAE (10) (16) (81) = = (690) (797)
Provided during the year FREE 17 28 2,588 = 6 9,007 11,836
Impairment Wi = = 3,550 - - 507 4,147
Eliminated on disposals HER = (211) (174) - - (8,344) (8,729)
At 31 March 2019 R=E-NF=A=t-H 3,638 2,345 11,329 = 188 66,284 83,784
CARRYING AMOUNTS: FRLE:
At 31 March 2019 R=E-NF=zA=t-H 568 136 4,431 = = 2,495 7,630
At 31 March 2018 R=E-\#=A=t+-H 617 1 9,025 - 6 14,410 24,059
The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount ARTRERAEBRRBPMININHEBRES
of its property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2019 BHMELERBRE AEEBR-_Z—IF
as a result of the deterioration of the market conditions and —A=t+—B¥WE - BRREE TR
operating performance of the Group’s outsourced business SEETRS c ZRTERERBEBED
process management segment in Macau. The reviews led 4,147,000/ T (ZF—/)\F - &) - HEREE
to the recognition of an impairment loss of approximately BERBETER RPINNHERREEE
HK$4,147,000 (2018: nil), that has been recognised in profit DEEME  EERRE2ATRESRETE
or loss. The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and HEEREREX(B=ZRAATFENE)IEE
equipment in outsourced business process management FEBEETE - IR EE16% -

segment in Macau have been determined on the basis of their
value in use using discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair
value measurements). The discount rate used was 16%.
BREERERERQA

—B-NE-nEEEHE 125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE—-Z—NF=ZA=1+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL 16. B E
HK$’000
FHE T
Cost A
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RN_TE—tFHA—H — )\
—AZ+—HBR=FT— )\i@ﬂ H —
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34(a)) Uk BE B B A R) BT E A (M9 5E34(a)) 433
At 31 March 2019 —hFE=A=+—H 433
Accumulated impairment losses 2 BEER
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and R-ZE— ti@ﬁ =S —N\F=
31 March 2019 A=+—8" /\i@ﬁ] A X
—E-hEF= H ‘l’ B —
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=+—H 433
At 31 March 2018 RN-=E

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to money
lending services segment.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined on the
basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method
(level 3 fair value measurements). The key assumptions for the
discounted cash flow method are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on long-term average economic growth
rate of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based
on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next
five years with the residual period using the growth rate of 5%.
This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the
Group’s money lending services activities is 15%.

—NF=A=+—H -

REBEHBRBEBNDE  RKERIRZE
EHEEZEGAHTPESNBRSEESEN
(REeEEEBEM]) BEZEAEIEER
BERE D=6 o

ReELBEUNR K SRR EEMAIRRA
ReREE(FEZRXFEFE) REREE
BE MRARSAEBEMRANIZR/R
HABMBEX - BRX - BEEFNERIK
SHRE - ARENBARKREAMHSEEHE
BRENFERREEEMNE ERBRK
BRI M A REIREK - EREFAIRR S E
B AR BTG P b R O 5 R H OB R
REBERE - BEENXNKRTDREEE
PIRTAHImS ERABEE -

AEEEUORE K BHEADREEE Y
S L4 9 800 9 TR 5B R 6 450
HRERE%IE o KL ELABDEETS
T RIEEE -

AR REAEERIERBEB 2 8RR
BMEZ R R15% °
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS

17. LAFEFEBEHEHTAHR

fezEBE 2 RERE At
HERE

Unlisted equity securities, at fair value FETMBRAZES
During the year of 2017, the Group invests HK$155,460,000 in
Primus, a company incorporated in United State of America,
and owned 73,251,487 Series E Preferred Shares (the “Primus
Shares”) and representing 20.82% equity interests in Primus.
Due to certain contractual arrangements with the other
shareholders of that company, the Group is unable to exercise
significant influence over that company and the investment
is classified as equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Loss arising from change in fair value of HK$54,157,000 on
equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income was recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Fair value loss of available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$105,451,000 (including impairment loss of available-for-
sale investments reclassified to profit or loss of approximately
HK$102,343,000) had been recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

For the fair value measurement of equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income/available-for-sale
investments please refer to note 6.

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$’'000

TH&T FET

{El - 54157

R-ZT—+tF » KREBRPrimus (—EREF
B A BB MK S A ) 1% B 155,460,000
7 7T R HE A 73,251,487 I E 48 & 5 AX ([Primus
B% 7]+ #8 & 7 Primus #920.82% A% #E) ° B
HZAREMBRENE TANLH  A5E
REHZARTEERFENIRBER S
BUARNFEGFEEEZEHAALMEAEK TS
ARG E o

HEZ-NFZA=+T—HIEEE UQ
FEFEBEZFHTALMEERRZE ZBEA
WE 7~ E 8 E 154,157,000 7T 7 &
thEEREER YRR ESHFEERE -

HE-Z—)\FZAZ+—ALFE  aJ#H
S & 2N F{EE1E4105,451,0007% 7T (8
BE s EEEE s HEERERERSR
#7102,343,000/& 70) E RIE & FERR ©

ERAATEMGEARBHHAL L2 EY
2 BARE A E RA 2 A E R
CEL BT
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e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

18. DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. HE R HAib FEWRRIE

2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHE T
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,  UWBEWZE  EENERE D
plant and equipment fiz& 8,500 161
Deposits and prepayments & RENRE 2,272 2,220
Deposits paid for game software BEEHRAERERZEN
development and licenses e 30,000 30,000
40,772 32,381
Less: Impairment losses B ORE R 1R (31,468) (31,468)
9,304 913
Other receivables H fth e W 5k 18 6,990 7,361
Less: Impairment losses R EE 18 (3,000) (3,000)
3,990 4,361
13,294 5,274

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, included in the impairment
losses of other receivables, deposits and prepayments are
individually impaired other receivables and deposits with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$34,468,000 which
are due to long outstanding and/or default of payment. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
Impaired amounts were directly written off against deposits and
receivables when there was no expectation of recovering any
amount.

RZE-NFR_ZFT—N\F=A=+—8"
ATAEM EUFRIE - 2 e RTEMFKIEZRE
85 18 B2 15 48 45 4 49 534,468,000/ 7T 2 & Al
BEEMERFERZS (FRARBERK
B/ SERGR)  AEBYERZEL
BIFETAEFR o 28T AT U= ] 3K
EE - BRE R TE B ERIE S K EBGRIE
84 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

INVENTORIES 19. &
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiET
Consumable and finished goods ERE M R LK 249 240

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with other customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 90 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

20. EZRWARE

AEEBREMBEFPZES

NEERE -

FEEH KN TI0BEWNR - FEEFHE
BEREERE FRP—ReHERELEN
IR oo A B BRI I H A R Uk B fE R
FIE o ERHEBAKRETERR -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—NF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHE T FHET

Trade receivables 5 WA 58 -

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice

BHRWHRBENRBEFERREBEEZEZANZIE

date, and net of allowance, is as follows: ROMTmT:
2019 2018
—E-NE —T—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
Within 30 days 30HA 58 —
BEBEERAERAT —=-N\EFE-hrFE5EHE 129
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking

20. EZRWRIEE)

AEEERBEEVHHREENFORZ L
TE - PAAE RS EWFIAE A2 B
BRETREAEEBERE - RFTEES
EEEE BZRUREDKRARGEERR
FERBHREHE  BHREEBEETES
RTRE ML &R -

information.

Current Total
B #A st

At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-NF=A=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate MEFHBEHREBEEEX 0% 0%
Receivable amount (HK$’000) FEU R IE (F A7) 58 58
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BB EE (T AT - -

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. EIRER

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
Loan receivables EUE R 26,664 -

The fixed-rate loans receivables of approximately
HK$26,664,000 (2018: nil) under the Group’s money lending
services operation as at 31 March 2019 represent loan
advanced to 5 independent third parties. The interest rates
for the loan receivables were ranging from 9.6% to 21.6% per
annum.

RZE-NF=A=1+—08  ~EERERE
IR T E E F R 8 U E 30 4926,664,0007%
TL(ZE—N\F B)ERRBYE =R
HEN - EWERNENEN FI.6/EE21.6
@ °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_—F

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

At the end of the reporting period, bank and cash balances
comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity period of three months or less. Bank
balance carried interest at market rates of 0.01% per annum
(2018: 0.01% per annum).

At the end of the reporting period, the bank and cash balances
of the Group in PRC denominated in RMB were HK$7,000
(2018: nil). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

DIRECTOR’S LOAN

As at 31 March 2018, the balance of director’s loan amounted
to approximately HK$4,874,000 represented an unsecured
and unguaranteed interest-free with principal amount of
HK$2,000,000, HK$3,300,000 and HK$250,000, respectively
from its director, namely Mr. Tan Teng Hong (“Mr. Tan”) (the
“Loan”), which will mature and become repayable on 20 May
2019, 22 July 2019 and 28 March 2020, respectively. The Loan
was carried at amortised cost using effective interest rate of
10% per annum.

Reference to the Company’s announcement dated 4 July 2018,
Mr. Tan has tendered his resignation as the Director. The
director’s loan of Mr. Tan was reclassified as other loans on 4
July 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered into a
director loan facility agreement with a director of the Company
namely, Mr. Kwan Chun Wai Roy (“Mr. Kwan”) for an unsecured
and unguaranteed interest-free loan facility of HK$3,000,000 in
total. As at 25 July 2018, HK$1,000,000 had been drawn down
by the Company (the “Director’s Loan”) and will mature and
become repayable on 24 July 2020. The Director’s Loan was
carried at amortised cost by applying an effective interest rate
of 10% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company early
repaid the entire amount of the Director’s Loan to Mr. Kwan.

BREEKZERARAR

22,

23.

mEMBHRME

—NEFE=ZA=1T—-HLFE

RITRBETHER

REMEMK ROTMAESERBEARE R
BZHRERIER 'JHﬂEIF%_ﬂﬂ&MTZL
HR1TER - RITERREFOOR(CE
NF:BFOOER) 2MHHERFE -

RIBERR  AEBEFRBEUARBIEZ
SRITRIR & & & A70008 T (ZF—N\F:
M) o NRBEH R BINEE BT PR INES E
E3

EEZEX

R_E—N\F=ZA=+—H8 EFEZLEH
,%74,874,000,%%-575?aﬁ7$ AEERB AL
A (TBR ST A4 1) 9 Bl BUAS AN & B8 42,000,000
7T 3,300,0007% 7T 250,000 7T 2 % 1K 37
&4&#"4%%%%%((% X)) BoRR=E
—hERA=-+AH - —hWF+tA=-+=H
kZZ-TF=/[= +J\E| BIHAEE o %m
B E R R RA0E 12 88 85 5 AN DI BR

LRAREHA T N\FLAWNAZ
W%ﬁ‘iiﬁ‘ﬁﬂi%%ﬂ%ﬁx REEZE
EERR_ZE-NFLANBEHRIERE
fth B °

2 AR
/W tt

RBEZEZEZZ—hhF=ZA=+—HLEFE &K
SEEAAREEBIRELE(BLEEDE
57 B — % 513,000,000/ 7T &) £ 18 K
ﬂﬁ%f’%%ﬁ'a%% IE CESERRERZE -

—E-N\FELtAZ+HB  ARFEIRE
1000000%m([§%1§ k1) BEAREBR
T TF LA+ ARBEE-BEFE
HEBEBRFEFR0E R BHERAANE -

REBE-T-NF= H -1— RIEFE &
REACMBEERAMEEZRESTEN

—B-NE-nEEEHE 131
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24. OTHER LOAN

(a)

132 Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/19

Other Loan A

As at 31 March 2017, the balance of shareholder’s loan
amounted to HK$17,392,000 represented an unsecured
and unguaranteed interest-free with principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 (the “Other Loan A”) from its substantial
shareholder, namely Mr. Yong Khong Yoong Mark (“Mr.
Yong”), which will mature and become repayable on
11 August 2018. The Other Loan A was carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate applied was 10% per annum.
The difference of the principal and the fair value of
the Other Loan A at initial recognition amounting to
approximately HK$3,471,000 was credited as deemed
capital contribution from the shareholder in equity.

Reference to the Company’s announcement dated 28
August 2017, Mr. Yong had disposed of 508,669,620
shares of the Company on 22 August 2017 and Mr. Yong
ceased to be a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The Other Loan A was reclassified as other loan as at
28 August 2017.

On 11 September 2017, Mr. Yong and the Company had
entered into a supplemental loan agreement, in which the
repayment date of the Other Loan A been revised to 11
August 2019.

As at 31 March 2018, the balance of the Other Loan A
amounted to HK$3,074,000 represented an unsecured
and unguaranteed interest-free with remaining principal
amount of HK$3,500,000, after the repayment of
HK$16,500,000 from the Company to Mr. Yong during
the year.

As at 31 March 2019, the balance of the Other Loan A
amounted to HK$3,380,000, representing an unsecured
and unguaranteed interest-free loan with remaining
principal amount of HK$3,500,000.

24, HBE X

(a)

HitERA

RN-_ZE—+tHF=ZA=+—H BERE
TR #217,302,0008 TLIE M E E B
R ELEEFE(GREEDBEAESEE
720,000,000/ 7T 2 £ 3 17 J 8 = R
RBERTHMERAD  BR=_ZT—
NENA+—BEHEE - HtERA
AEBRF BRI B HK TR - FTA
BEREFNRAEI0E - HBERAZ RS
HHERNPEREZ AFEZEZELN
3,471,000 JLE st ARz - FIERRIE
REHEE -

BIRMARRBHAZE—+FENAZ
TNBZRAE  BREER-ZT—tF
A Z+Z B H & A2 7508,669,620
BB EGEETBRRNRAREER
Ro EMERARZE—FNAZF
NEEHFIBER/EMLERK -
R-ZE—tFAA+—R HEREER
REFILAAERGE  BULEME
RAZERBHEBITE-_ZT-AFN
At+—R-

R-_E—N\F=ZA=+—H HiE
FALE $£3,074,0008 TTIE R p A& HE
3,500,000/8 7T 2 E B K EIERE B
BRAIBRFARARRGR MG EEER
16,500,000/ JT) °

R-TE-NF=F=+—H8 HHE
TR AKE $23,380,000/8 TTHE Fl A A& 58
3,500,000/ T 2\ N EIER P B

5
HA°



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_—F

24. OTHER LOAN (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Other Loan B

As at 31 March 2018, the balance of other loan amounted
to approximately HK$2,256,000 represented an
unsecured and unguaranteed interest-free with principal
amount of HK$2,600,000 from its former substantial
shareholder, namely Mr. Tsang Ho Kwan (“Mr. Tsang”) (the
“Other Loan B”), which will mature and become repayable
on 28 September 2019. The Other Loan B was carried
at amortised cost using effective interest rate applied
was 10% per annum. The difference of the principal and
the fair value of the Other Loan B at initial recognition
amounting to approximately HK$413,000 was credited
as deemed capital contribution from the shareholder in
equity.

Reference to the Company’s announcement dated 22
January 2018, Mr. Tsang had disposed of 503,669,620
shares of the Company and ceased to be a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The Other Loan B was
reclassified as other loan on 22 January 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company

24, EEX

(b)

mEMBHRME

—NEFE=ZA=1T—-HLFE

R (4E)
Hit & %8B

EA —N\F=ZA=+—H  EMEX

ﬁ%iﬁzzsaooo,%maﬁﬁmﬁfx
Hxiﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ%i(rf‘ﬁﬁ)ﬂx N
7%2600000,%75243&%&#&?%%4%%
BEEFRTEMERB) BR-Z—H
FALAZTN\BEHEE - Hﬁﬂiﬁm
FRAEREF K102 12 8 85 AR
EﬂﬂiﬁmBZ$ BEP Y TR ETZ

N B 2 = FE#1413,00078 7T 2 5HAME
w o BIERIERELE -

IR ARRAP AT - N\F—H=
+t-BRZRE %Eaﬂj%zﬁ/&ﬁ

503,669,620/% % (7 BT~ B & 42 7]
TRE HMWEXBR _ZE—\F— )El
—t-HEF EAEMER -

REBE_FT-AF=ZA=1+—HLHF
RRHE

early repaid the entire amount of the Other Loan B to Mr. /N TEW LAEERAEESEA
Tsang. fth & B
Other Loan C (c) HEMERXC
As at 31 March 2018, the balance of director’s loans R-ZE—N\FE=Z=A=+—"H EFE
amounted to approximately HK$4,874,000, representing FRAEE R H04,874,000/8 TTHE M E R E =
unsecured and unguaranteed interest-free loans with FR 5t A BR 1S AN & 58 9 Bl /2,000,000
principal amount of HK$2,000,000, HK$3,300,000 and JT ~ 3,300,000/% JT K& 250,000/ T 2
HK$250,000, respectively from a former Director, namely BEEALREERESEXR(THEMBLER
Mr. Tan (the “Other Loan C”), which will mature and Cl) BoRlR=2—NFRA=-+H "
become repayable on 20 May 2019, 22 July 2019 and —NELAZTZHRZZT-_ZEF
28 March 2020, respectively. The Other Loan C was _ﬂ TABEHEE - HthERCEK
carried at amortised cost using effective interest rate of BB F10/2 R # 3HK A 7 iR
10% per annum.
Reference to the Company’s announcement dated 4 BRMARBBHAZZT—\FL AN
July 2018, Mr. Tan has tendered his resignation as the HeRnd  BRAEEDHTIESHRE -
Director. The Other Loan C was reclassified as other HWEFRCR=ZE—N\FLAMNAEH
loans on 4 July 2018. DEREMER -
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company REBEE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HILE
early repaid the entire amount of the Other Loan C to Mr. RN T ERREERAEEERE
Tan. HihE®C
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24. OTHER LOAN (Continued) 24, HibE R (&)

(d) Other Loan D (d)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
entered into an unsecured loan agreements with an
independent third party (the “Other Loan D”). Pursuant to
the loan agreement, the principal amount of the loan is
HK$15,000,000 with fixed interest rate of 12% per annum
and repayable on 5 December 2019.

Hit & D

REE-_ZTE—NF=ZA=+—HILF
& ARRE— BB E= A ER
HERG®((EMERD) - REER
& - BB R 2 AL % A15,000,000
BT MEEEFRI2EFE TR
ZE-NF+-_ARABEHEE-

25. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 25. BENEEMRE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZREAEEEMN PR NEEKEE -
demand.
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FHET
Authorised: JETE
30,000,000,000 (2018: 30,000,000,000) 30,000,000,000% (=& —N
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 £ : 30,000,000,000% ) &

i E1{B0.0178 7T 2 & i X

Issued and fully paid: EETRARE:
2,366,286,547 (2018: 2,073,676,547) 2,366,286,547% (—=Z —//\
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & :2,073,676,5470% ) FA%

E{E0.01B L2 & B
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 26.

Movement of the number of shares issued and the share capital
during the current year is as follows:

IR (%)

AERDHTROBEMBAZEHNT

Number of

share issued Share capital

ERTROEE [N

Notes ’000 HK$'000

B 5 T & FAET

At 1 April 2017 R-ZZE—+tFMA—A 2,072,826 20,728

Exercise of share options granted EREERERETE (@) 850 9

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZZE-—NF=A=1+—H

EZF-N\FMA—H 2,073,676 20,737

Issue of shares on placement fid & B B 1T IR (D (b) 292,610 2,926

At 31 March 2019 RZZE—-NE=HA=+—H 2,366,286 23,663
Notes: (=

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the subscription rights
attaching to 850,000 share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$0.415 per share, resulting in the issue
of 850,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$353,000. Also, approximately HK$189,000 was transferred
from share option reserve to share premium. In result,
approximately HK$9,000 were credited to share capital and
HK$533,000 were credited to share premium respectively.

(b) On 10 August 2018 and 22 August 2018, the Company
entered into a placing agreement and supplemental agreement,
respectively, with a placing agent in respect of the placement of
292,610,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.24 per share. The placement
was completed on 4 September 2018, resulting in which
approximately HK$2,926,000 was credited to share capital and
the remaining balance of approximately HK$66,593,000 (net of
issuing expenses of approximately HK$707,000) was credited to
share premium.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consist of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves. The Directors review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior periods.

(@) RBEE-_FT-NF=ZA=+—HILFE
850,00010 R EFTM 2 REE SRR T
fRO.415 T 2 R (EE AT - EHEINE
17850,000% & IR A EO0.01/ B T 2 E B AR -
MR 2R & R E 2% 4 /353,000
FETT o LS 0 43189,0007 JT TY A B AR A
HEEREZRMEE - Fik - 499,000/ T &
533,0007%8 7t 9 BI R AR A K i 7 & B A A
EE °

b)) RZZE—NFNA+ARZZE—N\FENAZ
+=Z8  AREE-FEEREDFIFTLE
EpaE il T % - NABBIRSR0.24%
TL 2B ) B 3 1% & & B 5292,610,000%
BREEOIEITZERAR - BEENR=T
—\FNAMBERK - BEEF 2,926,000
& T A B AR - T 4 58 966,593,000/ TT
(30 % 2 7753 % 49707,0008 7T) 5 A B 10 3%
&R -

AEEERBREERAERAEESEREN
FERLE RANERELEBIEETER
R REER K@ -

AEBERERBBREARTEBAARGES
EREECSBRITRALGEE EFTTEHEH
BAGHE - FRULEHNZ &2 BEFEE
BAZKARMEERR  LREGEETEA
HEARBZEARRE  AEE 2 BRERE
RBTHEERSTE -

BRERERERAT —=-\E-rssEss 135
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/I

27. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27 UEBZZINZROERBAR

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include directors, full-time
employees, senior executives and consultants of the Group.
The Scheme has been adopted since 28 September 2012 and
amended on 8 August 2014, and unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares falling to be issued in respect
of the unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company as at the date
of approval of the Scheme. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
shares options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The subscription price will be determined at the discretion of
the Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the higher
of the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date, the average of the closing prices of
the shares as shown in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date and the nominal value of the share on the offer date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years from
the date of grant, the options expire.

Share options scheme was amended during the year. Before
amendment, options were forfeited if the grantee of the share
option leaves the Group. The Scheme is amended to provide
that if the grantee of a share option ceases to be an eligible
participant by reason of voluntary resignation or expiration of
his term of directorship in accordance with his contract of
employment before exercising the share option in full, he may
exercise the share option in whole or in part within a period of
six months following the date of such cessation.

2

ARARRE-BBERESS (58] U@y
AEBEBZRNEHERMcAERZEE
REZBLOR AER2EESREAEE
ZEF Z2BEE sSRTBRAERERM -
AEE T —FAAZTN\BRERM
WRZEB—MFENRBNBKER - BRIESTT
AHHER] BRIKEZERETFRAERFLE
X e

BRREFSAIRE 2 RITEBRBEETRE
RATERTZENESBERSEN S &L
HEEBARRRIAN 210% ° W ER+ 18 A
HEA - REFSETERETAE 24
BR2EZEZRTZENESHETFRBAR
REAMEMRBH2EETRNDZ21% - £—F K
BB IR 2 BREACBRNBRRERRE
EHEE -

REESHEEREEET  ERABETESE
RARBBROR BN AR EBRZIMEERE
REMBRBZMZKTE RODKEERE
MM AEESEREMIAERKRER L
sz P mERBRNMRENAMZEHE
(ABZERE) -

BRBALAE TIH5AE ARRBREHRBIRA
GLIREZER -

i 8 A A A e 1 (H B BRI R LA BRAR D R AT
- AIEB AR & 215 -

RER - BREBISIELER - REFTA
BB EARABRASE  AIBERESH
BUT e FHEICIEIERT - PART BB AR 2 K
BRAMREBITEBLEERN - B BRBHEX
RREBBANZESEHERMRIIER
BERSEE  AARAEBKLRIBENE
AEMATEZE S E D BAHE -
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27. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27. IS NZROERGARS

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (#&)
Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as RERNEMAKRITEZBREFBOT:
follows:
2019 2018
“E-NF —2-N\F
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options  exercise price share options exercise price
hn #E E 15 nHEFH
BREHE TEE BREHE TR
At beginning of the reporting period T ¥R & B ) 48,410,000 0.637 89,570,000 0.927
Granted during the year (Note) FRE L M) 82,800,000 0.257 20,700,000 0.255
Cancelled during the year (Note) FMEUE (F ) (82,800,000 0.257 - -
Exercised during the year FRTHE = = (850,000) 0.415
Forfeited during the year FRZK (19,010,000) 0.824 (61,010,000) 0.762
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ ERHKRITE 29,400,000 0.516 48,410,000 0.637
Exercisable at the end of the year FRATE 29,400,000 0.516 48,410,000 0.637
Note: On 10 August 2018 (after trading hours), subject to acceptance Wit: RZZ—NFNAT+B(RXZEEE)  F&

of the grantees, the Company has granted 82,800,000 Share
Options (the “Options”) to eligible participants of the Group (the
“Grantees”). Subsequently, the Company, as approved by the
Board and with the consent of the Grantees, has cancelled the
grant of the options with effect from 24 August 2018. None of
Grantees has accepted the Options. Details of the grant and
cancellation of the Options were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 August 2018 and 24 August 2018.

BABEME ARACAREBMZAEBR
28 ([FE A )% 1182,800,00017 & Ik 1
(TRERRHED - Hi - KESFSHAERARA
FAZE AAREHERLERE 5=2F—
NFENB =+ TUBEHRER o $EEAE AZERN
BRE - FHERIEERENFBRNAE
ARIRAE T - N\FNAT=AK=ZT—
NENAZ+MNBEZAE -
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27. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

—NhE=ZA=1+—-HLFE

27. URBEXNZROERGARS
(%)

RIEIREARITE 2 BRAEZITERERT

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: EEAAT
2019 —E-AE
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
B ERE TEE T
1,400,000 0.415 3 July 2014 to 2 July 2019
—E-NELtAZHE-E—AF+LA=H
300,000 1.080 21 September 2015 to 21 September 2020
—hAFNAZT—BEZZE=-TFALA=+—H
7,000,000 1.286 27 Ootober 2015 to 26 October 2020
—hAFt+AZt+tHE=E-_ZTF+H=-+<H
20,700,000 0.255 27 September 2017 to 26 September 2022
—E—tFAATERE-T-__FAA=-F+ XA
29,400,000
2018 ANGS
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
BEREHE 7B T HA
900,000 0.470 10 January 2014 to 9 January 2019
—ET-NF—-At+HEZZ—-—NF—ANA
1,600,000 0.415 3 July 2014 to 2 July 2019
—UFE+tA=ZHE-_ZE—AFLA=H
900,000 0.415 1 December 2015 to 30 November 2020
—RE+-A—RAE-_T-TE+—-HF=+H
1,350,000 0.415 1 December 2016 to 30 November 2021
TE-RETZA-HAEZE_—F+—H=1H
13,260,000 0.920 22 July 2015 to 22 July 2020
—E-AFtA+-HE_ZE-_EFELA=-+=H
1,500,000 1.080 21 September 2015 to 21 September 2020
—E-RFANAZ+—BRE_Z_ZEFAA=-+—H
7,000,000 1.286 27 October 2015 to 26 October 2020
T —RAFt+A=-t+tHEE-_ZE-TF+HA=+<H
1,200,000 0.610 1 March 2016 to 28 February 2021
- RF=ZA—RAEZE_—FZAZ=+NH
20,700,000 0.255 27 September 2017 to 26 September 2022
CTEtEtFNAZTEREZE_FAAZ+RH

48,410,000
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27. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

There were no share options exercised during the year (2018:
HK$0.53). The options outstanding at the end of the year
have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2 years
(2018: 3 years) and the exercise prices range from HK$0.255 to
HK$1.286 (2018: from HK$0.255 to HK$1.286). During the year,
no (2018: HK$3,737,000) equity settled share-based payments
have been charged against the Group’s results.

The fair values was calculated using the binomial option pricing
model. The inputs into the model are as follows:

27. URBEXNZROERGARS

(&)

EERERFRNEITECE—/\F 053
FETT) o BN SR 1 ARTTE B IR 2 N g 64
TAHWERAEME(ZE—)\F : =F) 17
BN F0.2558 L E1.2868 L (Z T — \F:
0.255/ L E1.286/8 L) « TN + NEE XA
P EBHBRAE S 2 BROER G (=
T — \ % : 3,737,000/ T ) °

ATVEDRA AR BRE UL - %
BE 2 HAEST

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T—N\F

Closing price as at grant date B EBRmE N/AT & A 0.255
Weighted average exercise price nREFEITEE N/ATE H 0.255
Expected volatility TEHR R 1R N/AT & A 145.48%
Contractual life A H)FH N/AT & A 5 years
Risk free rate i L B ) =R N/ATE H 1.187%
Expected dividend yield THEIR B X N/ATE H N/AZ i

Expected volatility was determined with reference to historical
volatility of the Company’s share prices after excluding the
suspension period. The expected life for the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018 was determined with reference to the
exercisable period of the share options as advised by the
management of the Company.

TEHRIE2RARRRE 2 B 525 0E R
FEERBRR)ET BE_ZT-AFR-E
—NEZA=Z+-HLEFEZRBFHLR
ARREREEMZBERBZITEYRETE -

BREREBESRAT —2-N\Z-rs5EHs 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

28. RESERVES

(@) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

140

28. &1

(a)

rEBEFHBEEREZPINGEAE
REMEZAESERIGAEZEHRK

EXT

(b) Reserves of the Company (b) AQERFEE
Capital
Share Capital redemption Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
KiaE BERffE EXEERE 2iE#R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THL FEL THL FEL
At 1 April 2017 WZE—+EmA-A 131,962 51,226 1190 (1,168,060) 196,318
Total comprehensive loss for the year TERE2ABELE - - - (154,898) (154,898)
Equity-settled share-based payments NEZIHZBROEREH - 3,787 - - 3,737
Forfeited of share options BRI R - (34,115) - 33,580 (535)
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of ~ {TEBEREBRITLER
share options 533 (189) - - 344
Deemed capital contribution arising from  JERE& S RREREL
non-current interest-free shareholder’s LRMETE
loan - 43 - - 43
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE-N\E=A=+-H
K=T-\EME—A 1,312,495 21,072 1190 (1,289378) 45379
Total comprehensive loss for the year rEERABELE - - - (106,808) (106,808)
Issue of shares on placement REBETHRN 66,593 - - - 66,593
Forfeited of share options R R g - (8,618) - 8,618 -
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-NF=R=1—H 1,379,088 12,454 1,190 (1,387,568) 5,164
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29. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION OF 29. AAR M BMR R E
THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—E-NEF —TE-)N\%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WEREE 1,662 12
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RR 2’ E 400 —
2,062 12

Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N Eith e U 5k IE 8,840 711
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI 32,879 93,995
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S 45 10,233 288
51,952 94,994
Current liabilities RBAE

Trade and other payables B 5 & E At B 3RIA 5,099 6,627
Amount due to a subsidiary B —RWE AR KA 16,708 16,725
Other loan HEMER 3,380 —
25,187 23,352
Net current assets RBEEFE 26,765 71,642
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERTRBHERSE 28,827 71,654

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Director’s loan EEEM = 208
Other loan HtER — 5,330
= 5,538
NET ASSETS EEFE 28,827 66,116

Capital and reserves EERAREE
Share capital A% A< 23,663 20,737
Reserves & 5,164 45,379
TOTAL EQUITY R 28,827 66,116
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30. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

(a)

(b)

142

Commitments under operating leases
As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
are negotiated for a term ranging from one to two years
(2018: one to two years). The Group does not have an
option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the
leased period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which are payable as
follows:

30. HiE

RBMEHR - AEB ZAEWT:

(a)

ReEBEEE
ERAMA

AEBRELEHELHEES TH
REYVEREIANE - KEZEZIBEHN
F—EZEMF(CE-N\F:—EMF) -
AEBEEEENENERSEER
HEZEE -

RIEHR - RIETAIREELHEE
AEBAEARTHEB N Z REKKIE
FAEREAENT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Within one year —FR 848 726
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FCEERFN(BEY
BRE) 217 294
1,065 1,020
Capital commitments (b) EAREIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s RIREIR - AEBE BB ZE - #a3

capital expenditure contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately HK$1,500,000 (2018: nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_—F

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties

There were no other related party transactions and
balances except for those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements.

Key management compensation

The key management personnel of the Group comprise all
the Directors and the five highest paid individuals. Details
of the compensation to Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are included in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

32. LITIGATIONS

(a)

(b)

The Company against Mr. Cheng Chee Tock
Theodore (deceased) (“Mr. Cheng”), Ms.
Leonora Yung (“Ms. Yung”) and others

For details, background and the development of this
litigation in the prior years, please refer to previously
issued annual reports since 2010/2011 and interim
reports since 2011/2012.

There was no other development for this litigation during
the reporting period.

The Company and Highsharp Investments
Limited, as the Plaintiffs

For details, background and the development of this
litigation in the prior years, please refer to previously
issued annual reports since 2010/2011 and interim
reports since 2011/2012.

There was no other development for this litigation during
the reporting period.

BREKRZERAERAT ==

31.

32.

e B WK

—NEFE=ZA=1T—-HLFE

HEALRS
(@) BEALTXS

(b)

i

(a)

(b)

B/

Bz e M mRE
N5 B 3 8 H A R

fth Z ERPTIR BR & A
BEATRG RS -

& E 5

AEBFTEEEABRE2BESER
TAREFAT EERHAEARSF
AT ZHBMFHBHNGEE VBRI
FE12 °

ARFHFEZ2BEETHEENE
B REELZT (Rt IRHE
fie A £

AU H I 2 ST - 2R R
BEFEIRR  BENE-T-%

ARz =

E-T-—FURNBZFERENRE

TR —FECE-CFPRNEZSP
HwE -
SRR AR G E L B R

ARFRSHREBRIAUESR
RE&EN)

BRMBEFRBRZFHE BREHRR
BREFEZERE  F2HEB-_T—FF
ECT-—FPRTBZFERERE

TE-—FECTFPRABEZP
HHE -
HIEFDARNRERE LT EEMER -

~NE-hrEEEHE 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EHEZE—_ZT—NE=A=1+—HItFE

32. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

144 Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/19

The Company and Ace Precise International
Limited, as the Plaintiffs

For details, background and the development of this
litigation in the prior years, please refer to previously
issued annual reports since 2010/2011 and interim
reports since 2011/2012.

There was no other development for this litigation during
the reporting period.

The Company together with former
subsidiaries of the Company against Mr.
Cheng

For details, background and the development of this
litigation in the prior years, please refer to previously
issued annual reports since 2010/2011 and interim
reports since 2011/2012.

By the order of the Court on 31 July 2018, the Case
Management Summons Hearing (“CMS Hearing”) on 1
August 2018 was vacated and adjourned to 30 January
2019.

By the order of the Court on 28 January 2019, the CMS
Hearing on 30 January 2019 was vacated and adjourned
to 10 May 2019.

By the order of Court on 9 May 2019, the CMS Hearing
on 10 May 2019 was vacated and adjourned to 5
September 2019.

32.

i

(c)

(d)

ENG)

AT B2 Ace Precise International
Limited {EBFREA)

EHENEFDRZFHE BE2ERER
BAFE2ER  #F2HEB-Z—ZF
BEIE——FURTBZFERERA
TE——FETFUARTIBEZF
HAER 4 o

HIEFDNRERF L EELMER -

20 T 5] H Al B 2 B BR K 5B

BERMLBEFRRZHB BRERRER
BEFEZERE  F2HE-_T—FF
E-T-—FURNBZFERERA
CE-—FET-_FPKRB2P
HHE -

BREEER-_F-N\FLtA=T—H
Hezm< ZE-N\FNA\A-—HZEH
ERERRM(REEEERRADR
HYREE—T-NF—HA=1+H"-

BREBEEER_ZE-NF-A-+TN\BIE
hzw< —F-NF-A=TRAZE
HEEERKRMBBYRERE—T—
NFREATH-

BREBEEER_ZT-NAFHANBEE
2T ZE-NFEATHZENE
BEEERRABBLHRRE_FT—NF
NARH -
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33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE_—ZT—NE=A=1+—HIFE

33. TEMBEAE

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/
registration/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary

TRIMEZRARIBHEAEBAFEE
BRERERBLHEEFEZARRMELR
Bl BEERAFHINEMMBARGEHIIR
BRILE °

RBERRZETEMBRARFHEAT:

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

Name of subsidiaries operations shares/paid-in capital the Company Principal activities

gAY EH/ BEATEAR KO

WEARAR BEHE HE/HREX REBAL TEEH

Directly Indirectly
BE EF:

SD Advance Management Limited Macau MOP 25,000 - 100%  Provision of services on
management of electronic
gaming equipment in Macau

SD Advance Management Limited R 25,0003 M 7 REFRHETFEYREERRS

ezBlock Financial Technology Company — Hong Kong HK$1 100% — Provision of information technology

Limited services

HRERHMRERAT B BT REERR S RE

Powerful Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% — Provision of money lending services
in Hong Kong

BN BERAT B 1,000,000/ 7T REBR B HE RS

BREEKZERARAR
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

—NhE=ZA=1+—-HLFE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

4. ZEBRETRERME

(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (a) WEKHEBARA
I.  Acquisition of Powerful Finance Limited 1. W B T B 7B R A A
Reference to the Company’s announcement IRMARNTRIHE A T —//\F
dated 27 December 2018, the Group acquired T AT EBEZAE  AKHE
100% of the issued share capital of Powerful LA 4838 ¢ X {400,000 JT U B8
Finance Limited at a total cash consideration of BV BERATINEHEET
HK$400,000, a company incorporated in Hong A AR R BB ML
Kong and principally engaged in business of money FEREREE -
lending.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities PRUCHE B D A TS B IR A R) 2 7T 3%
of Powerful Finance Limited acquired as at its date MEERBERKERHNQF
of acquisition is as follows: (ER NS
HK$’000
FiE T
Net assets acquired: EBAEEFE:
Loan receivables JiE Uk B 3R 14,904
Deposits and other receivables Be R HMEWRIA 39
Bank and cash balances RITRIB & 71
Other payables and accruals HEMENZIEREER (19)
Other loan Hih B R (15,000)
©)
Goodwill 2= 405
400
Satisfied by: AR5 5 A Z A
Cash & 400
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEREE ZFHRS R
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 400
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BERERe RS EEER (1)
329
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 34. ZREBRETRERM T (E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) WEMHEATE)
Il.  Acquisition of BEZ @ RH (FI)ERIT Il. WKEEEZHBRE (FI)ERA

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital
of BESMMBRBCRYIDBER QA at a total
cash consideration of RMB20,000, a company
incorporated in the PRC and %4 gt iR CFYI)
AR AR] is dormant.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of BEE®ELRS ORI) AR AT acquired as at its

&

REBEE-Z-AF=ZA=+—8H
LHFEE AEENABRESREA
R 20,0007t U B8 75 52 2 Bb AR 75
ORIDBRARNEHECEITR
AN ZARRFRREEMA Y BE
mEEo

i R 2 BRTS CRYID B IR
REZA A E E KRB ERKE

date of acquisition is as follows: HEIW AFEEWT :
HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: EBAEEZE: —
Goodwill [EES 24
24
Satisfied by: DaNESENE
Cash B4 24
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WENEEZFRS AN
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 24
BRERERERAT —=-\Z-rsEEHs 147
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

4. ZEBRETRERME(H)

(Continued)
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) WEMHEATE)
lll. Acquisition of S ERE(FY)ERAE . WHEZSREERECRY)BERL
(Formerly known as 253 # 2 @£ RE (FH) F B (BB BEEEERERE (F
R 2 &) o) E R E])
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group REBE=ZT—-NF=A=+—H
acquired 100% of the issued share capital of HEFE AEBNBHRESREA
SMEEREBCORIDBR AT at a total cash REATUE SRR E ORI
consideration of RMB1, a company incorporated AR AF(—FER R E MK
in the PRC and SR @ EMRIECRID AR A is AR BERFRZER)100%E
dormant. BITIRAR -
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities g S ERE ORI BR
of ZIMEERIE (XY BRAF] acquired as at its NEIMAIHPEE R aERKE
date of acquisition is as follows: HEIW AFEEWT :
HK$'000
FiE T
Net assets acquired: FrBEREE:
Deposits and other receivables e Ik H R GRIE 1
Bank and cash balances RITRIB S &8 1
Other payables and accruals HtEAFIBREGER (5)
@)
Goodwill [EES 4
1
Satisfied by: BBATHNER:
Cash R& 1

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

AKRBELNFRERL

R E
FERe MREFEEA
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

(b)

Disposal of a subsidiary
Disposal of Silkway Holdings Limited

On 7 November 2018, the Group had entered into
disposal agreement with independent third party, in which
the Group would disposed 1 share (the “Sale Share”),
being the entire share owned by the Group, in issue of
Silkway Holdings Limited at a total cash consideration of
USD1. The disposal was completed during the current
year.

Silkway Holdings Limited was principally engaged in
investment holding. The assets and liabilities of Silkway
Holdings Limited at the date of the disposal were as
follows:

4. ZEBRETRERME(H)

(b) HE—FEKEBAQTF
# ESilkway Holdings Limited

R_ZE—N\F+—AtH KEBHEF
VB REIMNHE R Bt AER
AR SR E1ZTHEIRBRD ([45
ER 2 ])) - BN 7K & 3 A # A 1 Silkway
Holdings Limited % #8227 8% {5 » H
EEHEERAFETK °

Silkway Holdings Limited = 2t =% &
TRE TS » Silkway Holdings Limited 7
HERSMNEERBBENT

HK$'000
FHET
Net assets of Silkway Holdings B & & Silkway Holdings
Limited disposed of: Limited F & E :
Deposits and other receivables e & H M E W GRIAR 1
Net assets disposed of FREEFEE 1
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMN B AR W= -
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BRE-UARE M 1
Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalent HEKEBEATBRERRESEE
in respect of disposal of subsidiaries: HERERADN:
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BEREerReEEBEENRE 1
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

34.

RERTRERWEE)

(Continued)
(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (c) METBFHEEED
activities
The following table shows the Group’s changes in TRINFFNEABREETHEHH A E
liabilities arising from financing activities during the year: BEEZY:
Total liabilities
Director’s Shareholder’s from financing
loan Other loan loan activities
MEETH
EEEX HthEX BRRER RELR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 RoBE—+EMA—R - - 17,392 17,392
Changes in cash flows Rengd 5,550 (16,500) 2,600 (8,350)
Non-cash changes ETEY
— changes in fair value -ATEEY (735) 863 - 128
— deemed capital contribution —BETE - - 413) (413)
— disposal of shares from substantial —* Z R HEK
shareholders 3 - 19,579 (19,579) -
— exchange difference -ERES (47) - - 47
— imputed interest expenses —-REFBRAX 106 1,388 - 1,494
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZZE—-NF=A=+
—BE=E-\FN
H—H 4,874 5,330 - 10,204
Changes in cash flows BeRgEs 3,768 (12,392) - (8,624)
Non-cash changes FHeE
— changes in fair value -ATEE (587) 1,136 - 549
— transfer —EE (8,155) 8,155 - -
— acquisition of a subsidiary — -
G NG| - 15,000 - 15,000
— exchange difference -ERES (77) 128 - 51
— interest charged —FBEH - 474 - 474
— imputed interest expenses -HEMERAX 177 549 - 726
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE
=A=+—-H - 18,380 - 18,380
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period the Group
acquired 25% of the issued share capital of Gold Castle Group
Limited and its subsidiaries at a total cash consideration of
HK$3,588,000.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2019.

35.

36.

BEMRER
RB|EWRE AEBUBULR SR

£3,588,000/% JT U & Gold Castle Group
Limited & E Fff 8 2 5] #925% B 81T IR AR ©

HESRSHMBEHRER

RGEMBERENR-_Z-NFXRNA-++EH
Easait e REENE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFUBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group AEEBEREMREE 2 EEUNEEREAR
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited 1 Z HiEs AT B KL EZ UGB HRER AL EY
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set E|H DB (WEE) - FHFWAT -

out below.

RESULTS E 3

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE2-NEF —ZE-N\F ZT—+tF —T-RF _T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TAT TET TET

CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER

Revenue W 87,787 112,416 151,228 153,657 180,022
Loss before tax BRERTEE (38,898)  (128,418)  (159,282)  (236,506) (47,995)
Income tax 58 - — - 4,966 676

Loss for the year from continuing #HE KL EK 2

operations KEEEIE (38,898)  (128,418)  (159,282)  (231,540) (47,319)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION GERAIE&EK
Loss for the year from a ERIEEEEB A FE
discontinued operation &8 - - - - -
Loss for the year REEEE (38,898)  (128,418)  (159,282)  (231,540) (47,319)
Attributable to: IATA LB :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE RSN (38,898) (131,612) (156,179)  (231,469) (47,319)
Non-controlling interests FE 1 IR B - 3,194 (3,103) (71) -
(38,898)  (128,418)  (159,282)  (231,540) (47,319)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-NE —T-N\F —T—+tF —T-XE —T-0F
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HKS$000
FERT FET FHET FET FET
Total assets BEE 72,507 84,935 227,988 180,115 242,823
Total liabilities BEE (31,510) (21,376) (40,916) (18,668) (86,471)
Net assets EEFE 40,997 63,559 187,072 161,447 156,352
Attributable to: IATA L& :
Owners of the Company KARBEEA 40,997 63,559 190,271 161,543 156,352
Non-controlling interests Pl g — — (3,199) (96) —

40,997 63,559 187,072 161,447 166,352
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